% o

N

YORK

CEITY QF

COUNCIL @

/

Notice of a public meeting of

Planning Committee A

To: Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-Chair), Ayre,
J Burton, Clarke, Cullwick, Melly, Nelson, Steward,
Whitcroft and Wann
Date: Monday, 22 July 2024
Time: 4.30 pm
Venue: West Offices
AGENDA
1. Declarations of Interest (Pages 1-2)
At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are
asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on this
agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the
interest.
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.
[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members].
2.  Minutes (Pages 3 - 14)

To approve and sign the minutes of the last Planning Committee A
meeting held on 16 May 2024.



3. Public Participation
At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.

Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to
2 working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at meetings. The
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Thursday
18 July 2023.

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the
registration form or the meeting, please contact Democratic
Services. Contact details can be found at the foot of this agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will
be webcast, including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on
demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts.

4. Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning
application:

a) York Central, Leeman Road, York (Pages 15 - 94)
[23/02255/REMM]

Reserved matters application for layout, scale, appearance,
landscaping and access for erection of a six storey (plus basement)
office building (Use Class E (g) (i)) with ancillary uses and self-
contained retail floorspace (Use Class E (b)) at ground floor,
associated car and cycle parking, servicing and access, public realm
and other associated infrastructure pursuant to outline planning
permission 18/01884/OUTM [Holgate Ward]

5. Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts

Democracy Officer:

Angela Bielby

Contact details:
e Telephone: (01904) 552599
e Email: a.bielby@york.gov.uk

Alternative formats

If you require this document in an alternative language or format (e.g. large
print, braille, Audio, BSL or Easy Read) you can:

—
rﬂ Email us at: cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk

Call us: 01904 551550 and customer services will pass your
request onto the Access Team.

é Use our BSL Video Relay Service:
www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService i gt
Select ‘Switchboard’ from the menu. ST
@l e ! We can also translate into the following languages:
Y () MR MNESRMEEISS (Cantonese)

a3 ©7 R TSR S (7Tl (TS AT | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim (Polish)
wiasnym jezyku.

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)

R D G T, (Urdu)

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak
Business of the meeting
Any special arrangements
Copies of reports and



mailto:a.bielby@york.gov.uk
mailto:cycaccessteam@york.gov.uk
http://www.york.gov.uk/BSLInterpretingService

e For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPEAEMIESIRHEEREISS (cantonese)
g3 27 IR NEa SEw (7l ( TS AR | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Follsh)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e ) G T e (Ura)
T (01904) 551550




(1)

Page 1

Declarations of Interest — guidance for Members

Members must consider their interests, and act according to the

following:

Type of Interest

You must

Interests

Disclosable Pecuniary

Disclose the interest, not participate
in the discussion or vote, and leave
the meeting unless you have a
dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Directly
Related)

Disclose the interest; speak on the
item only if the public are also
allowed to speak, but otherwise not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Other Registrable
Interests (Affects)
OR

Non-Registrable
Interests (Affects)

Disclose the interest; remain in the
meeting, participate and vote unless
the matter affects the financial
interest or well-being:

(a) to a greater extent than it affects
the financial interest or well-being of
a majority of inhabitants of the
affected ward; and

(b) a reasonable member of the
public knowing all the facts would
believe that it would affect your view
of the wider public interest.

In which case, speak on the item
only if the public are also allowed to
speak, but otherwise do not
participate in the discussion or vote,
and leave the meeting unless you
have a dispensation.

Agenda ltem 1

(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or
their spouse/partner.

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations,



Page 2

and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992.



Page 3 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee A

Date 16 May 2024

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fisher (Vice-Chair),

Hollyer, Merrett, Nelson, Steels-Walshaw, Steward,
Whitcroft, B Burton (Substitute for CllIr Kelly) and
Vassie (Substitute for ClIr Ayre)

In Attendance Becky Eades — Head of Planning and Development
Services
Jonathan Kenyon — Principal Officer Development
Management
Natalie Ramadhin — Development Management
Officer

Erik Matthews— Development Management Officer
Sandra Branigan — Senior Lawyer

Apologies Councillors Ayre, Kelly and Waudby

97. Declarations of Interest (4.34pm)

Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any disclosable
pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they might have in respect
of business on the agenda, if they had not already done so in advance on
the Register of Interests. There were none.

98. Minutes (4.34pm)

Resolved: That:
1. The minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee A held on 7
March 2024 be approved and signed as a correct record.

2. The minutes of the meeting of Planning Committee A held on
19 March 2024 be approved and signed as a correct record
subject to Tony Franklin being amended to Tom Franklin and
the sentence at the end of Clir Kilbane’s speech to change from
‘At this point he was asked how many trees would be removed
and the Chair detailed the removal of trees to the committee’ to
‘At this point he was asked how many trees would be removed
and using the screen in the room showing the site plan, the
Chair detailed the removal of trees to the committee.’



Page 4

99. Public Participation (4.35pm)

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme on general matters within
the remit of the Planning Committee A.

100. Plans List (4.36pm)

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Head of Planning and
Development, relating to the following planning applications, outlining the
proposals and relevant policy considerations and setting out the views of
consultees and officers.

101. Bradleys Farm Shop New Lane Huntington York YO32 9TB
[22/01733/FULM] (4.36pm)

Members considered a major full application for the erection of a charity
children's centre with outdoor recreation facilities to also include;
landscaping, footpaths, crossings, car parking and cycle parking following
demolition of existing barn and polytunnel at Bradleys Farm Shop, New
Lane, Huntington, York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services gave a presentation on
the application. She showed the location of the site in relation to the outline
planning permission housing on New Lane. Members were provided with
an update in which they were informed that there was an additional letter of
support from a Ward Clir for Huntington and New Earswick Ward. There
had also been a request from the Agent for the Applicant for a change of
wording to conditions 11, 15, 16, 20, 22 and 26 (Prior to commencement of
development (excluding demolition), which had been agreed. The Head of
Planning and Development Services showed where planning applications
for parcels of land to the north of the application site were. She also noted
condition 3 that the site shall operate in strict accordance with the
submitted Operator Statement (dated July 2023) at all times.

Public Speakers
Diane Geogheghan-Breen (Chair of Fulford Huntington Parish Council)
explained that the Parish Council objected to the application as it was in the




Page 5

green belt and had supported applications for housing on New Lane. She
noted that there would be a further application for housing on New Lane.
She expressed the Parish Council’s concern about flooding in the cemetery
which would mean that there couldn’t be double graves and was impacting
on the cemetery finances. She noted the Parish Council’s further concerns
about car parking and a lack of public transport. She noted that if approved,
the Parish Council would like to work closely with The Island. She was
asked and explained that because the site was not being used for housing,
in the neighbourhood plan it was agreed that there would be no further
building on New Lane and the application would mean a loss of green belt.

Nigel Poulton MBE (Chief Executive Officer, The Island) spoke in support
of the application, stating that it had supported over 2000 young people
who had faced challenges. He explained that despite increased demand,
they had limited space that impacted on it. He added that the new building
would allow them to build relationships with community groups and young
people participating in workshops. He explained the outdoor areas of the
site noting that it would have diverse areas. He explained how the building
would be used and that it would be a permanent legacy.

Nigel Poulton MBE was joined by Philip Holmes (O’Neill Associates -
Planning Consultant) and Simon Pratt (SCP - Transport Planning) to
answer Member questions. In response to questions from the committee
they explained that:

¢ The Island had funding for capital costs and the new centre would help
support young people.

[At this point, the Chair noted that the Head of Planning and Development

Services had drawn attention to condition 3].

e Young people could travel independently to the site and there was public
transport.

e The application met 10% and sigificantly more biodiversity net gain and
there was a comprehensive landscaping scheme and biodiversity
management plan in the conditions.

e There was a transport addendum that detailed people using the building.

Faye Simpson, a former mentee of The Island, spoke in support of the
application. The explained that The Island had helped her gain confidence
after she had experienced bullying. She explained how her mentor had
helped her and had given her confidence to talk to people when she went
to university and work.

Cllr Webb (Executive Member for Children, Young People and Education)
spoke in support of the application. He explained that as Executive Member
he was keen that the administration helped disadvantaged people and as
Executive Member he saw the difficulties faced by young people. He noted



Page 6

that there was alsways a need for more community space and The Island
should be seen as an asset. He noted the comments of York Civic trust,
adding that there was a long list of supporters. He noted that he was happy
to support the application.

Members then asked clarification questions to officers, who explained that :

e Active travel were not consulted on the application.

e There was an existing cycle lane and itw as explained where the new
crossing would be.

e The applicant was funding the crossings.

e How the decision was made regarding the crossing with the floating
island.

¢ Only the impact of the flooding of this development could ne considered.

e Condition 10 included soakaway testing.

e Officers had acknowledged the previous use of the site and the
application included employment use.

e Regarding the £16k S106 contribution seeming low, this was because of
the type of development and the highway works were conditioned. [The
Chair explained that S106 funding was used for different things].

e Accessible cycle space was in condition 26.

e Regarding the Secretary of State’s decision to approve housing on New
Lane, applications needed to be considered on their own merit and
officers had looked at very special cirumstances as part of this.

e The weight carried by the Neighbourhood Plan, Local Plan, and
consideration of national planning policy.

Following debate, Clir Merrett moved the officer recommendation for
delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and Development
Services to APPROVE the application subject to the application being
referred to the Secretary of State and to delegate the final terms and details
of the Section 106 Agreement and the final detail of the planning conditions
to Head of Planning and Development Services. This was seconded by ClIr
Nelson. Following a unanimous vote in favour it was;

Resolved: That delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and
Development Services to APPROVE the application subject to
the application being referred to the Secretary of State and to
delegate the final terms and details of the Section 106
Agreement and the final detail of the planning conditions to
Head of Planning and Development Services.

Reasons:

1. The application seeks permission to erect a Children’s Charity
Centre with outdoor recreation facilities. It is proposed to erect a
two storey building, with single storey elements, of u shape



Page 7

form with an entrance courtyard, landscaping and parking. The
site would be occupied by ‘“The Island’ - a registered charity
(1120420) which delivers a service supporting disadvantaged,
vulnerable, and isolated young people in the city through
positive mentoring relationships and activities.

. The application site lies within the Green Belt. The development
Is classed as inappropriate in the Green Belt, which is harmful
by definition. Harm has also been identified to the openness of
the Green Belt, urban sprawl, landscape character, loss of
trees, limited bus accessibility and a parking shortfall of 6no.
vehicles. The benefits of the scheme include; providing a
permanent base with enhanced facilities for the Charity,
opportunities for outdoor sport and recreation, public access to
the site, habitat creation, environmental improvements, creation
of jobs, upgrades to the existing bus stop and use of the site by
other community groups. It is considered that there are very
special circumstances that would clearly outweigh any harm to
the Green Belt and other harm identified as required by
paragraph 153 of the NPPF, policy H14 of the Huntington
Neighbourhood Plan and policy GB1 of the Draft Local Plan
(2018). Matters such as landscaping, archaeology, amenity,
biodiversity, trees, drainage, sustainability, contamination,
waste and highways are adequately addressed either within the
plans or via a specific condition.

. On planning balance and based on the merits of this case,
approval is recommended subject to the referral of the
application to the Secretary of State under The Town and
Country Planning (Consultation) (England) Direction 2024 and
the application not being called in by the Secretary of State for
determination. The application is required to be referred to the
Secretary of State as the development is considered to be
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and the proposal
would consist of floorspace in excess of 1000m2 (the
floorspace threshold set out in the Direction).

. Following the referral of the application to the Secretary of State
and subject the application not being called in, that delegated
authority be given to the Head of Planning and Development
Services to APPROVE the application subject to:



Page 8

a. The completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure the
following planning obligations:
- £6,000 towards amending the Traffic Regulation Order to
introduce the extension of the 30mph speed limit.
- £10,000 towards City of York Council Travel Plan Support
(@ £2,000/per year for 5 years)

b. The Head of Planning and Development Services be given
delegated authority to finalise the terms and details of the
Section 106 Agreement.

c. The Head of Planning and Development Services be given
delegated authority to determine the final detail of the planning
conditions.

[The meeting adjourned from 5.28pm to 5.35pm].

2a) North Selby Mine New Road Deighton York YO19 6EZ
[23/01309/REMM] (5.35pm)

Members considered a Major Reserved Matters Application for
appearance, landscaping, layout and scale of redevelopment of the former
North Selby Mine site to a leisure development comprising of a range of
touring caravan and static caravans and associated facilities following the
grant of outline permission 19/00078/OUTM at North Selby Mine, New
Road, Deighton, York.

The Head of Planning and Development Services outlined the application
and gave a presentation on it. She noted that the siting of the static and
touring caravans was in line with the reserved matters application. She was
asked and showed the location of the amenity block, which was shown as
welfare facilities on the plans.

The Development Management Officer gave an update on the application
noting that corrections to the report included references to chalets in the
report should read static caravans. He explained that the applicant
indicated that the total number of caravans envisaged would be 92 touring
caravans and 231 static caravans which are the numbers conditioned
under condition 3 of Outline Permission 19/00078/OUTM and
20/01546/FUL at the approved density. He also noted additional
representation from Escrick Parish Council regarding the
entertainment/amenity buildings which should be conditioned as necessary.
A draft condition was proposed restricting use of any facilities at the site to



Page 9

those resident and regarding permitted development, there was no
permitted change within the scope of the Use Classes Order.

Public Speaker

Bruno Hannemann, a local resident (representing himself, his wife and the
residents of two other properties), spoke in objection to the application. He
noted that the new application brought in new buildings and facilities that
were not included in the other application which would impact on noise and
introduce noise disturbance. He was also concerned about non residents
on site, and he requested that the committee read his letter in full before
considering the application.

Bruno Hannemann was asked a number of questions from Members. He
was asked how long he had lived there and the Chair noted that this was
not a material consideration. The Chair advised that the objection letter
could not be considered as officers had considered comments on the
application.

Members asked officers further questions to which they responded that:

e The reception and wellness building was in the previous application and
the existing buildings would be retained for recreational use. There was
a noiuse management plan conditioned and public protection had been
consulted and were happy with the application.

e There was no agreement to take away any other buildings.

[At this point, ClIr Steward noted that his partner’s family owned a caravan

site].

e There were no day visitors to the park. Condition 6 was noted and it was
clarified that the facilities on site could only be used by residents. The
Chair noted that the wording of the condition could be tightened if the
committee felt it was required.

e The recreational strategy and noise management plan were included in
the outline planning permission.

e Regarding the concerns of Yorkshire Wildlife Trust, there was a site
management plan for species of site. There was also a SINC (Site of
Interest for Nature Conservation) management plan.

e Concerning a condition regarding numbers of cats, it would need to be
determined where the cats came from. [At this point the Senior Lawyer
advised that conditions imposed could only relate to the reserved
matters and the Head of Planning and Development Services added that
the committee needed to consider reasonableness.

e Regarding concerns about the site becoming a permanent site,
Members were advised that the outline consent as this was the reserved
matters application.



Page 10

e Regarding cat proofing the fencing, the materials for the fencing could
be conditioned.

¢ All disabled car parking was level access with two parking spaces in the
carparking spaces.

Members debated the application. During debate Members considered the
use of a cat proof fence and were advised that a deer proof fence could be
used as a cat proof fence. There was detailed debate on the management
of visitors to the site. Following debate, Clir Merrett proposed the officer
recommendation to approve the application subject to an amendment to
condition 2 with an additional reference to domestic animals, the wording of
which delegated to officers in conjunction with the Chair and Vice Chair.
This was seconded by ClIr Whitcroft. Following a vote with eight voting in
favour and two abstentions, it was:

Resolved: That the application be approved subject to an amendment to
condition 2 with an additional reference to domestic animals,
the wording of which delegated to officers in conjunction with
the Chair and Vice Chair.

Reason: The principle of the use of the site as a leisure facility based
upon caravan stays has previously been established by grant of
Outline Permission. The submitted layout details are broadly
consistent with that with the proposed entertainment and
amenity buildings making use of the disused mine structures.
Detailed measures have been indicated at the same time to
safeguard the biodiversity value of the adjacent SINC which are
felt to be acceptable. With the management plans proposed
and the degree of protection afforded by the surrounding
landscaping it is felt that the proposal would not unacceptably
harm the amenity of neighbouring properties. The proposal is
therefore felt to be acceptable in planning terms and approval is
recommended.

[The meeting adjourned from 6.39pm to 6.45pm].

102. Pavers Ltd Catherine House Northminster Business Park
Harwood Road Upper Poppleton [23/00823/FULM] (6.45pm)

Members considered a Major Full Application for an extension to provide
storage, integrated distribution and logistics centre (B8 Use) with ancillary
office/welfare space, service yard, parking areas, and landscaping
(resubmission) at Pavers Ltd, Catherine House, Northminster Business
Park, Harwood Road, Upper Poppleton, York.



Page 11

The Head of Planning and Development Services outlined and gave a
presentation on the application. The Principal Officer Development
Management gave an update noting a correction to proposed plans list.
Clarification was given on the economic benefits, as set out in sections
5.22 and 6.3 of the published report.

Public Speakers

Jason Paver (Managing Director, Pavers) spoke in support of the
application. Her explained that Pavers was a family owned business based
in York for 70 years. He detailed the number of people working for the
company and it’s contributions to charity. He explained that the company
had had to use storage all over the country and there was a desire to keep
the company in York. He added that they had worked hard to address the
concerns since the last application was submitted and had worked with
officers on the application. He noted that approval would allow Pavers to
remain in York and provide economic growth in York.

Jason Paver was joined by Jim Young (Head of Facilities, Pavers) and
Philip Holmes (O’Neill Associates, Planning Consultant) to answer Member
guestions on the application. In response to Member questions, they
explained that:

e Pavers had intended to buy the DPD site.

e There had been a 200% online expansion since COVID in buying online
and the expectation was that the building being applied for would meet
their needs and the majority of retailers used one site for distribution.

¢ Regarding landscaping, the intention was to start with mature trees and
they would like to get landscaping started as soon as possible.

e There was a mixture of deciduous trees in the landscaping plan.

e They had had a number of conversations with Northminster estates it
wasn’t envisaged at the time that the whole site would go. The scheme
for DPD essentially landlocked Pavers.

e The conveyor belt did not need to be in a straight row.

In response to questions from Members, officers explained that:

e The principle for very special circumstances was the same for a new
building in the green belt and extending a building on the green belt.

e Regarding the weighting of economic benefits should the economic
position change, the committee had to consider the application before it.

e The Planning Inspector has not considered the site as part of the Local
Plan process.

e The BREEAM rating of very good was consistent of buildings of that
type and was as good as it could be for that type of building.

e Strategic policies were not being applied to the site.



Page 12

ClIr Merrett moved the Officer recommendation to delegate authority to be
given to the Head of Development Services to determine the final detail of
the planning conditions and refer the application to the Secretary of State
and should the application not be called in by the Secretary of State, then
approve the application subject to planning conditions. This was seconded
by ClIr Steward. Following a vote with eight voting for, one against and one
abstention it was:

Resolved: That delegated authority to be given to the Head of
Development Services to:

Reasons:

To determine the final detail of the planning conditions
below.

Refer the application to the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government under the requirements
of Section 77 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990,
and should the application not be called in by the Secretary
of State, then APPROVE the application subject to planning
conditions.

. The proposals are for a warehouse extension of significant

scale (11,275sgm floorspace) which is over double the size
of the existing premises, along with associated car parking
and loading bays for HGV’s on what is currently open
agricultural land within the general extent of the Green Belt.
The land is proposed to remain Green Belt in the draft Local
Plan 2018 which remains subject to examination. There
would be adverse effects on the openness and rural
character of the Green Belt due to the amount and scale of
development proposed. Further to adverse effects on the
Green Belt there is landscape and visual harm due to the
scale and type of the proposed building in its countryside
setting. Technical matters can all be addressed through the
use of planning conditions.

. This is a resubmission of 21/02804/FULM which was for a

comparable proposal and was refused because very special
circumstances were not identified that outweighed the
identified harms. In the previous application there was
further harm in respect of drainage, sustainable travel
measures and lighting. Each of these issues are addressed
in this submission. The submission also advances the
applicants case for very special circumstances.



Page 13

3. The applicants have provided a business case
demonstrating the benefits of the existing premises being
able to expand, allowing growth and increased efficiency of
the business with up to 30 extra jobs. In addition to jobs in
the warehouse the business also involves office-based jobs,
both at the application site and at additional offices in York.
Pavers would employ up to 430 employees in York and
contribute in the region of £51,99m annually to the York
economy. There are considerable economic and
environmental benefits in enabling a local business to
continue to expand and it is accepted, it is not financially
viable for this to occur at a different site within York. The
economic benefits and lack of a deliverable alternative York
site have been advanced since the previous application and
result in an officer recommendation to approve.

4. The financial benefits of the proposed extension have been
advanced and as the company grows, the inefficiencies and
costs of storage off site increases. Officers now accept there
are not viable options for the company to either operate
multiple sites or fully relocate within the city. The Council’s
Economic Team have outlined their strong support to enable
the business to grow and have verified the applicant’s case
for expansion of the existing site. Furthermore, the scheme
has strong support from the Council’s Economic
Development Team and local amenity bodies; the York Civic
Trust, York & North Yorkshire Chamber of Commerce and
the local MP.

5. The NPPF in respect of the economy advises “policies and
decisions should help create conditions in which businesses
can invest, expand and adapt. Significant weight should be
placed on the need to support economic growth and
productivity, taking into account both local business needs
and wider opportunities for development”.

6. NPPF Policy requires substantial weight to be given to any
harm to the Green Belt. Very special circumstances will not
exist unless the potential harm to the Green Belt by reason
of inappropriateness, and any other harm resulting from the
proposal, is clearly outweighed by other considerations.



Page 14

7. The NPPF requirement to give substantial weight to Green
Belt harm would typically outweigh the significant weight
applicable to supporting economic growth. In this particular
case though there is a robust argument in favour enabling
expansion of a local business experiencing significant
growth. It is accepted it would not be viable for such growth
at an alternative location in York outside of the Green Belt
and there is a tangible risk the business could relocate
outside York if it is unable to expand.

8. Officer's recommendation is that in this particular case the
reasons for the scheme and the economic benefits proposed
(as set out in paragraph 5.22) do amount to very special
circumstances that clearly outweigh all identified harm; the
identified harm to the Green Belt and the landscape and
visual harm. As such the scheme can be supported when
applying policy PNP1 of the Upper and Nether Poppleton
Neighbourhood Plan, the NPPF and local Green Belt policy.

9. Should members decide to approve the application then
referral to the Secretary of State would be required to
determine whether the application be called-in for
consideration, as the development is considered to be
inappropriate development in the Green Belt and the
proposal would consist of floorspace in excess of 1,000m2,
following the Town and Country Planning (Consultation)
Direction 2024 and Section 77 of the Town and Country
Planning Act 1990.

Cllr J Crawshaw, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30pm and finished at 7.33pm].



Page 15 Agenda Item 4a

Date: 22 July 2024 Ward: Holgate

Team: West Area Parish: Holgate Planning Panel
Reference: 23/02255/REMM
Application at: York Central, Leeman Road, York

For: Reserved matters application for layout, scale,

By:

appearance, landscaping and access for erection of a
six storey (plus basement) office building (Use Class E
(9) (i)) with ancillary uses and self-contained retail
floorspace (Use Class E (b)) at ground floor,
associated car and cycle parking, servicing and
access, public realm and other associated
infrastructure pursuant to outline planning permission
18/01884/0OUTM

Homes England, Network Rail Infrastructure Ltd and
Government Property Agency

Application Type: Major Reserved Matters Application
Target Date: 6 March 2024 (Extension of Time: 25 July 2024)
Recommendation:  Approve subject to conditions

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

PROPOSAL

The application seeks reserved matters approval for layout, scale,
appearance, landscaping and access for the erection of a six storey
(plus basement) office building (use class E (g) (i) (formerly B1a)). The
building would create 19,047sgm Gross External Area (GEA) which
includes 2,043sgm GEA ancillary space. It is anticipated that the office
building would be used as a Government Hub. Government Hubs are
intended to bring together occupiers from multiple government
departments into a shared location, bringing investment in infrastructure
and capital investment to cities other than London.

The proposals include a small self-contained retail unit at ground floor for
use as a coffee shop (use class E (b)) comprising 285sgqgm GEA.

The proposed six storey building would be brick built with concrete lintels
in a matching tonality to the brick panels with glazing framed with
anodised aluminium frames and textured metal ventilators in weathering
steel effect. The building incorporates a roof terrace to part of the 5"
floor which will include outdoor seating space set amongst planters for
use by occupiers of the building. The roof itself has been designed to

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Page 16

accommodate a photovoltaic installation to the southwest, air source
heat pumps and a green roof.

Externally hard landscaped paths including the delivery of a new planted
pedestrian alley referred to as Cinder Snicket will be created between
the Plot and Plot F1b to the south. Hudson Lane would be delivered
between the Plot and Plot F2 to the west and would provide a pedestrian
and cycle route linking through to Hudson Boulevard with limited
vehicular access, primarily for service deliveries and blue badge parking.

Sixteen accessible blue badge parking spaces would be accommodated
adjacent to the plot, eight within the service yard and eight within Plot
F1b. In addition space for servicing and deliveries is also provided. The
spaces would be accessed via Cinder Street. It is intended that no other
vehicular parking would be provided on site.

A minimum of 230 long stay cycle parking spaces would be provided
within the building at ground floor, 10 of these will be accessible. 20
external short stay cycle parking spaces will be provided to the south of
the building, 8 of these are designed for non-standard bikes. A further
16 short stay spaces would be available close to the main entrance.

The building known as the Biscuit Warehouse which currently sits on
part of the site would be demolished to accommodate the new building,
consent for this demolition formed part of the outline consent
18/01884/OUTM.

APPLICATION SITE

The application site sits within York Central and falls within the area
identified as the Station Quarter as set out in the York Central Approved
Parameter Plans and Design Guide. The site is part of Plot F which has
flexibility to provide any use at ground floor with predominantly office and
research and development uses at the upper floors. Hudson Boulevard,
which forms the main pedestrian and cycle route will run immediately to
the north of the site and is currently being built out as part of the
approved infrastructure works. Beyond Hudson Boulevard sits the
former Goods Station which is part of the National Railway Museum and
is grade Il listed.

The primary vehicle route known as Cinder Street is located to the far
south and this is also being built out as part of the approved
infrastructure works. Plot F1b is located to the south and Plot F2 to the

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



1.10

1.11

1.12

1.13

1.14

Page 17

west, both of which remain undeveloped. To the north-east and east of
the site sits The Square a new area of public realm, consent for which
has been granted and works due to commence later this year. York
Railway Station is located to the far south-east.

The site falls outside the Conservation Area with the Central Historic
Core Conservation Area Character Area 22 (Railway) being located to
the east and encompassing York Railway Station and part of the city
walls, which are also a scheduled monument. The site is identified as an
Area of Archaeological Importance.

BACKGROUND AND RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

The site forms part of York Central which is allocated under Policy SS4
of the Draft Local Plan for a mixed use residential and commercial
development.

In 2019 outline planning permission (18/01884/OUTM) was granted with
all matters reserved for redevelopment of the site to provide a mixed-use
development of up to 379,729 m2 of floorspace Gross External Area
(GEA) primarily comprising up to 2,500 homes (Class C3), between
70,000 m2 and 87,693 m2 of office use (Class Bla), up to 11,991 m2
GEA of retail and leisure uses (Classes A1-A5 or D2), hotel with up to
400 bedrooms (Class C1), up to 12,120 m2 GEA of non-residential
institutions (Class D1) for expansion of the National Railway Museum,
multi-storey car parks and provision of community uses all with
associated works including new open space, ancillary car parking,
demolition of and alterations to existing buildings and associated
vehicular, rail, cycle and pedestrian access improvements.

The outline permission is accompanied by an Environmental Impact
Assessment setting out the likely environmental effects in accordance
with requirements under the Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. Outline permission was granted
in the context of this assessment and was subject to 83 conditions and a
Section 106 agreement.

The first reserved matters application referenced 20/00710/REMM was
granted in November 2020. The application sought approval for layout,
scale, appearance, landscaping and access for the construction of the
primary vehicle, pedestrian and cycle routes and included associated
landscaping and alterations to the existing road network. The
infrastructure works approved include the construction of Cinder Street,

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



1.15

1.16

1.17

Page 18

a new primary road which runs from Leeman Road tunnel to the south of
the site and Hudson Boulevard, a new pedestrian and cycleway which
sits to the north of the site. As part of this application the car parking
along Cinder Lane which served the Railway Station was shown as
being displaced and temporary car parks were indicatively shown on
development plots B, C, D, F, G and H. The approved infrastructure
works are currently under construction.

The second reserved matters application 21/02793/REMM was granted
in August 2022 for layout, scale, appearance, landscaping and access
for the construction of Central Hall (F1 use class) at the National Railway
Museum. The proposals include an entrance hall, exhibition space and
café with associated access, parking, landscaping and external works.
These proposals sit to the far north of the site and enabling works
relating to this approval are currently being undertaken.

The third reserved matters application 23/01494/REMM for layout, scale,
appearance, landscaping and access for the creation of a new public
realm with associated infrastructure and landscaping and alterations to
the existing road network which sits to the east of the site was granted
approval in February 2024.

There have been a series of discharge of conditions approved and some
are pending decision relating to the above approved outline and
reserved matters applications. In addition there have been non-material
amendments and Section 73 applications both pending and approved
relating to the proposed infrastructure works.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1

National Planning Policy

Since the outline consent was granted the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF) has been revised a number of times, most recently
in December 2023 and its planning policies are material to the
determination of planning applications.

Key chapters of the NPPF relevant are:

Achieving sustainable development (chapter 2)
Decision-making (chapter 4)

Building a strong, competitive economy (chapter 6)
Promoting healthy and safe communities (chapter 8)
Promoting sustainable transport (chapter 9)

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Page 19

Making effective use of land (chapter 11)

Achieving well designed and beautiful places (chapter 12)

Meeting the challenge of climate change, flooding and coastal change
(chapter 14)

Conserving and enhancing the historic environment (chapter 16)

Development Plan

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004
requires that determinations be made in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise.

The Draft Local Plan 2018 was submitted for examination on 25 May
2018. It has now been subject to full examination and is expected to be
adopted late 2024. The Draft Local Plan policies can be afforded weight
in accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF.

The key policies relevant to the proposals which can be given moderate
weight are:

SS4 - York Central

D1 — Placemaking

D2 — Landscape and Setting

D5 — Listed Buildings

D6 — Archaeology

GI2 - Biodiversity

Gl4 — Trees and Hedgerows

ENV2 — Managing Environmental Quality

ENV3 — Land Contamination

ENV4 — Flood Risk

ENV5 — Sustainable Drainage

T1 — Sustainable Access

T6 — Development at or Near Public Transport Corridors, Interchanges
and Facilities

T7- Minimising and Accommodating Generated Trips

Those policies which can be given limited weight based on outstanding
objections are:

SS1 — Delivering Sustainable Growth for York

CC1 — Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage
CC2 — Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development
CC3 — District Heating and Combined Heat and Power Networks
ENV1 — Air Quality

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 20

T5 — Strategic Cycle and Pedestrian Network
T8 — Demand Management

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The most recent consultation responses are set out below:
INTERNAL

STRATEGIC PLANNING POLICY TEAM
6 February 2024

There are no in principle concerns. Policy SS4 sets out the site-specific
criteria against which the proposals should be assessed.

CITY DEVELOPMENT (ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT)
1 March 2024

The development of York Central is a key enabler in growing the city’s
economy and contributing to the delivery of the York Economic Strategy.

It is pleasing to see this application coming forward to enable early
delivery of a substantial Grade A office building in a prime location on
the York Central site. Providing space for circa 2600 full time equivalent
Civil Servants, it will facilitate job creation within a new business district
for York as well as consolidating and safeguarding high quality jobs
within the wider York area.

As part of the Places for Growth Initiative and a drive to increase job
opportunities outside London, it is anticipated that the proposed
Government Hub will also act as a catalyst for further new inward
investment and business growth in the City, helping to create high value
job opportunities for York residents as well as potential supply chain
opportunities for York businesses, as has already been evidenced from
similar investments in other Northern locations e.g. Darlington.

HIGHWAYS DEVELOPMENT CONTROL (HDC)
8 July 2022

All remaining issues can be addressed through existing conditions which
includes a Full Travel Plan (Condition 37), although there are some
concerns whether the current travel plan and the Section 106 funding

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

Page 21

secured at outline stage will be sufficient to deliver a successful car free
development of this size.

LEAD LOCAL FLOOD AUTHORITY
24 June 2024

Conditions 75 to 81 imposed on the outline consent 18/01884/OUTM will
need to be addressed and discharged under separate approval of details
applications for this area of the site. We have assessed the submitted
Flood Risk Assessment and Drainage Strategy Report and comments
made should be taken into account when the subsequent discharge of
conditions applications come forward.

DESIGN AND SUSTAINABILITY
26 February 2024

This is a great design quality benchmark for the first reserved matters
building on York Central and given the Local Plan focus on York Central
for city office expansion it is also great to see office use new build at this
key location in the masterplan. The overall proposed design is
supported, with some minor matters subject to recommended conditions.

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT
21 June 2024

Note changes to the highway layout and parking which offers little, if any
scope for planting within the ‘yard’ now. There are some concerns
regarding potential conflict between proposed drainage and trees which
needs to be resolved to ensure those trees shown can be
accommodated. Otherwise support the proposed landscape detail. Itis
noted that further landscaping detail is to be approved through the
discharge of Condition 24

CYC ECOLOGY
20 June 2024

It is confirmed that having reviewed the additional information provided
by the Applicant sufficient information has been provided in relation to
aspects of the landscaping scheme and proposed biodiverse roof which
address previous concerns raised regarding biodiversity enhancements.
In terms of the habitat boxes there remains the concern that the current
locations as shown in the BEMP are unlikely to be used by the targeted
species given they are in areas of high disturbance. To address this

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



3.10

3.11

3.12

3.13

3.14

3.15

Page 22

concern consideration should be given to re-locating the insect hotel to
the amenity terrace or biodiverse roof, where it is much more likely to be
functional. Consideration for additional bat and bird boxes in areas
where they would be more functional such as retained areas of
vegetation in the wider site covered under the outline permission should
also be given.

CYC ARCHAEOLOGY
18 December 2024

The application is submitted with an Archaeological Remains
Management Plan (ARMP) which contains a summary of all
archaeological monitoring and evaluation work which has taken place.
Further evaluation is required on the southern half of the plot with
monitoring to the northern half. An archaeological condition is therefore
recommended.

PUBLIC PROTECTION
21 January 2024

Air Quality

The measures outlined in the plot specific Emission Mitigation Statement
(EMS) are acceptable but should be reviewed by CYC sustainability/
building control/transport.

Contamination

The submitted Atkins Ground Investigation Report concludes the site is
suitable for the proposed use. Further ground investigation works are
required post demolition of all structures on site. There are conditions
within the outline permission (55 to 57) that require a full ground
investigation to be undertaken therefore there is no requirement for any
additional conditions.

Light
Happy for a similar condition to Central Hall for further lighting detail.

Noise

Condition 64 of the outline approval requires a noise assessment for
plant/machinery to be submitted for approval of the LPA therefore no
further recommendations or conditions are required.

Construction Management

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



3.16

3.17

3.18

3.19

3.20

Page 23

Condition 15 of the outline approval requires a Construction
Management Plan to be submitted for approval therefore no further
recommendations or conditions are required.

CYC WASTE SERVICES
11 December 2023

The swept path analysis used in the application should refer to the
specifications in the Waste Information for Developers Guide, including
vehicle size, turning circle and minimising reversing.

CARBON REDUCTION TEAM
2 February 2024

The Applicant has demonstrated that at least a 28% reduction in carbon
emissions (as required under Part L of the Building Regulations) can be
achieved by considering reduced energy use, energy efficiency, district
energy and low and zero carbon technologies, and will therefore meet
the guidance set out in Condition 50 regarding policy CC1 of the
Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

The Applicant has demonstrated that a BREEAM Outstanding score can
be achieved and will therefore exceed the guidance set out in Condition
51 regarding policy CC2 of the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

BUILDING CONTROL
No response received.
External

HOLGATE PLANNING PANEL
20 December 2023

Object on the following grounds:

The Outline Transport Plan is fundamentally compromised because it is
written with a presumption that one or more multi-storey car parks will be
built. A MSCP has no guarantee of being developed and it is feasible
that the forthcoming York Local Transport Plan due in 2024 could
establish a principle of no new car parks in the city centre which would
invalidate this application’s assumption that one will be built in the
vicinity.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



3.21

3.22

3.23

3.24

3.25

Page 24

111 temporary parking spaces are proposed on Plot F2 but with no
constraint for a maximum duration of the temporary facility. There are
concerns it could be in place indefinitely. Even if temporary it seems
counter intuitive to open a workplace with on-site parking for a select few
for a limited time, only to take them away again when travel habits have
become entrenched.

NORTH YORKSHIRE POLICE
26 June 2024

It is pleasing to note that the accessibility arrangements proposed for the
site do not compromise its security and in particular the hostile vehicle
mitigation measures.

The application accords with the core principles and design objectives in
the NPPF in respect of developments creating safe and accessible
environments where crime and disorder, and fear of crime do not
undermine quality of life or community cohesion.

YORKSHIRE WATER
21 December 2023

No objections.

ACTIVE TRAVEL ENGLAND (ATE)
4 July 2024

ATE previously outlined its position on the local and national vision to
commence a shift in travel patterns towards sustainable and active
modes of transport. The Applicant has stated that it is intended for this
development to play a role in delivering this objective and this is why
ATE has recommended, through the course of its consultation
responses, that the quantity and quality of cycle parking to serve the
development is of a high standard and capable of supporting the targets
within the Travel Plan. During the course of ATE’s involvement
improvements have been made to the quantity and quality of cycle
parking some issues remain, these can be addressed by planning
conditions. Overall ATE'’s view is that the cycle parking has reached an
adequate level, although further improvements as recommended would
have resulted in a more positive cycle parking provision.

HISTORIC ENGLAND

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



3.26

3.27

3.28

3.29

4.0

4.1

Page 25

20 March 2024

Historic England recognise the consistency of approach with the outline
planning application adopted, in terms of massing and positioning of this
building. We note the adherence to the maximum heights set out in the
outline parameters and the retained views out to the Yorkshire Dales
and this is welcomed.

We note the detailed comments on design and materials for the
proposed new building provided by CYC Conservation Team. We are
content to endorse and defer to these recommendations.

Similarly with regards to the archaeology of the site, we note the
comments provided by the City Archaeologist. We are content to
endorse and defer to their advice and recommendations.

Historic England have no concerns regarding the current proposals on
heritage grounds. We consider the application meets the requirements
of the NPPF, in particular paragraph 135 and 195.

REPRESENTATIONS

The application was advertised by neighbour letter, site notice and
advertisement in the local newspaper resulting in one letter from YoCo
being received, the comments raised are summarised as follows:

a) We are pleased to see the inclusion of a commercial (café) at street
level as the building needed to engage with the public square in some
active way, plus the main entrance being on the same frontage is a
positive response.

b) The unit is poorly sited, opening out mainly onto the traffic of Cinder
Lane, rather than the pedestrianised square.

c) There is little space externally for commercial activity to engage with
the public as most of the ground floor contact with Hudson Boulevard
will be ‘dead’ especially problematic for public space at night.

d) The external materials and patterning are not unattractive, but the
homogenous approach leaves the bulk very apparent.

e) The analysis of the site spells out the reading of the building, as base,
middle then top, then completely ignores this in the repetitive design.
The approach to the base and top simply omits the design articulation
of the middle.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



f)

Page 26

There is plenty of precedent locally for the nearby railways to
influence design of different levels, but the building does not pick up
on it. A consequence is little local character.

g) As a government building there is no attempt to spell out this civic role

or to be in any way distinctive.

h) It will be many years before street trees achieve anything like the

)

)
K)

)

presence shown and the roof seems to be a missed opportunity.

The mean terrace at one end is no substitute for a landscaped roof
level which gives something back to the environment, if the entire roof
needs to be given to plant this suggests an unsustainable reliance on
building services.

The building provides secure cycle parking, but does not appear to go
any further in encouraging sustainable travel.

Concerns that the transport plan proposes to use site F2 as
temporary parking. Establishing travel habits based upon driving into
the city to park is contrary to the current thinking on reducing car use
in the city core.

The Transport Plan implies it will be there until a nearby multi storey
car park is built, but there is no certainty this will see the light of day.

m) Throughout the consultation there has been little clarity about who

the building is for. It isn’t clear how the building will bring thousands of

jobs to the city as it appears it will largely relocate jobs already based

in the region. A hub implies a place where the city engages but this is
not yet clear.

n) As a major public building, funded by public money, yet almost

entirely non-public in its relationship with its valuable setting, the
proposals do not yet convince.

0) Would ask that the application be revised to address the issues

highlighted.

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1

The key issues for consideration are as follows:

Context within which to assess this Reserved Matters Application
Sequencing of Delivery

Design Matters

Highway Matters

Heritage Impacts

Ecology/Biodiversity

Flooding and Drainage

Environmental Protection

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.2

5.3

Page 27

e Socio Economic Matters
e Public Sector Equalities Duty

CONTEXT WITHIN WHICH TO ASSESS THIS RESERVED MATTERS
APPLICATION

The outline planning permission referenced 18/01884/OUTM granted
consent for the principle of the redevelopment of York Central to provide
a mixed-use development including between 70,000 m2 and 87,693 m2
of office use (Class Bla) and up to 11,991 m2 GEA of retail and leisure
uses (Classes A1-A5 or D2) with multi storey car parks, open space and
associated vehicular, rail, cycle and pedestrian access improvements
and included for demolition of and alterations to existing buildings. This
reserved matters application seeks approval for an office building with a
gross external area of 19,047sgm to be used as a Government Hub
which is part of the Government Hubs Programme to invest in
infrastructure in cities other than London. In addition a small self-
contained cafe is proposed at ground floor with a gross external area of
285sgm. The level of development proposed therefore sits comfortably
within the floor areas set out at outline permission stage.

The outline application was granted in the context of an Environmental
Impact Assessment (EIA) which assessed in detail the anticipated
environmental impacts arising from the development. These
environmental impacts covered air quality, traffic and transport,
archaeology and built heritage, townscape and visual, noise and
vibration, ecology, ground conditions, socio-economics and population,
waste resources, water resources, flood risk and drainage, wind, daylight
and sunlight, climate change, health and the cumulative impact from the
development. The impacts and any necessary mitigation measures
identified were considered and judged acceptable at outline application
stage and hence consent was granted. Any subsequent reserved
matters application therefore has to demonstrate that the proposals align
with the EIA and that there are no new or additional environmental
effects identified when compared to the assessments and conclusions
presented within the EIA. This reserved matters submission is
accompanied by an Environmental Compliance Statement which
confirms that the environmental impacts accord with what was
anticipated and any mitigation requirements set out in the EIA remain
relevant and unaltered by the proposals. Having reviewed the
submission against the outline consent Officers accept that the
proposals align with the EIA.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.4

5.5

5.6

Page 28

When outline consent was granted 83 conditions were attached, many of
which require the developer to submit details alongside the reserved
matters submissions, prior to commencement or at other relevant trigger
points within the development process. Therefore where information has
not been presented as part of this reserved matters application each
section of the report confirms which relevant outline conditions would
deal with any outstanding matters. Any new conditions imposed should
relate directly to the matters reserved and should not repeat those set
out at outline stage given that these still need to be complied with.

The proposals are also considered within the context of the Parameters
Plans (Condition 6) and Design Guide (Condition 7) approved at outline
stage. The approved parameter plans cover aspects of the scheme
such as the buildings proposed for demolition and the limits of deviation
within which new access and circulation routes and areas of open space
would be developed. It also sets out the different types of development
zones across the site, proposed site levels and maximum development
heights and basement levels. The approved Design Guide is a key
document which encourages the quality of design which should be
reflected in subsequent reserved matters applications. The document
includes mandatory codes which each reserved matters proposal must
adhere to. The application has therefore been assessed within the
context of this approved design framework and it is accepted that the
proposals accord with both the parameters and Design Guide.

This reserved matters site falls within the area identified in the York
Central approved parameter plans and Design Guide as Plot F which
has any permitted use up to 6m below ground and at ground floor and
predominantly Bla or B1b (office or research and development uses at
upper floors). The plot sits within the Station Quarter, more specifically
referred to as the Cinder Yards. The Design Guide considers Station
Quarter to be a new destination for businesses, for tourists and for local
residents alike. The proposals submitted align with the Design Guide in
that they propose a new office building with ancillary retail at ground
floor, set within the approved design parameters. The principle of the
intended end uses has therefore already been established by the outline
permission and these are not able to be re-visited as part of this
reserved matters application. Thus this application is concerned only
with the detail of the development being its layout, appearance, access,
scale and landscaping proposed as well as any technical matters where
further information has been submitted.

SEQUENCING OF DELIVERY

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

Page 29

Given that the site sits within the wider York Central development site it
Is useful to understand the proposed sequencing for delivery of the
reserved matters schemes already approved and those that are to
follow.

The primary infrastructure works relating to York Central were approved
under 20/00710/REMM. These works include the construction of the
main spine road Cinder Street to the far south of the site and Park Street
to the west leading through to the new junction at Water End, Foundry
Way which spurs off from Leeman Road and links through to Hudson
Boulevard which runs immediately to the north of the site and provides
the main pedestrian and cycle route once Leeman Road is stopped up.
The programme of infrastructure works to facilitate the stopping up of
Leeman Road are due to be completed by late 2024/early 2025, with the
remainder of the works to be completed by 2026.

A recent approval has been granted under reference 23/01494/REMM
for the public realm known as The Square immediately to the north east
and east of the site which provides space for outdoor seating for the café
and incorporates hard and soft landscaping features including hostile
vehicle measures, cycle parking and seating. It is expected that this
area would be delivered alongside the approved National Railway
Museum Central Hall (21/02793/REMM) during 2025. It is therefore
expected that The Square would be delivered in advance of the
Government Hub building which is anticipated to be constructed by 2026
with fit out and operation in 2027.

An improved pedestrian and cycle footbridge at Wilton Rise, improved
accessible rear Station Access and proposed Cycle Hub are all referred
to within the outline application and are conditioned accordingly
(Conditions 42, 43 and 44), these are key infrastructure elements
located within the wider York Central site. There is no reserved matters
submission or confirmed date for delivery of these aspects of the
scheme at present, although it should be noted that the outline
conditions require schemes for these to be approved prior to occupation
of Plot F.

DESIGN MATTERS

Relevant policies

Chapter 12 of the NPPF relates to achieving well-designed and beautiful

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.12

5.13

5.14

5.15

Page 30

places with Paragraph 131 emphasising the creation of high quality,
beautiful and sustainable buildings and places is fundamental to what
the planning and development process should achieve. Good design is
a key aspect of sustainable development, creates better places in which
to live and work and helps make development acceptable to
communities.

Paragraph 135 goes on to state that planning decisions should ensure
that developments will (among other criteria), function well and add to
the overall quality of the area, not just for the short term but over the
lifetime of the development; are visually attractive as a result of good
architecture, layout and appropriate and effective landscaping; are
sympathetic to local character and history, establish or maintain a strong
sense of place, using the arrangement of streets, spaces, building types
and materials to create attractive, welcoming and distinctive places to
live, work and visit.

Policy D1 of the Draft Local Plan relates to placemaking and states
development proposals will be supported where they improve poor
existing urban and natural environments, enhance York’s special
qualities and better reveal the significances of the historic environment.
The policy goes on to set out detailed design points relating to urban
structure and grain, streets and spaces, building heights and views and
character and design standards. Policy D2 of the Draft Local Plan
relates to landscape and setting and sets out a series of detailed criteria
for consideration.

Policy SS4 relates specifically to York Central and sets out further
design criteria specific to this site which includes, creating a distinctive
new place of outstanding quality and design which complements the
existing historic urban fabric of the city and respects those elements
which contribute to the distinctive historic character of the city and
assimilates into its setting and surrounding communities.

Assessment

The Design and Access Statement (DAS) submitted at outline
application stage described the design intent of the development and the
key townscape and placemaking considerations. It described how the
site would be divided into five distinct areas, each defined by a differing
mix of uses and each with its own character, responding to constraints
and opportunities and to the design drivers of the development.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 31

5.16 The outline application Design Guide advanced the design intent in the

5.17

5.18

5.19

Design and Access Statement and provided guidance for developers in
the successful delivery of the development. The Design Guide sets out
mandatory requirements which subsequent reserved matters
applications must adhere to alongside advisory aspirational guidelines
which need to be taken into account on each reserved matters
application. The Design Guide was conditioned as part of the outline
approval (Condition 7) in order to deliver a coherent vision in accordance
with National Planning Guidance. In addition a series of parameter
plans were also approved at outline stage (Condition 6).

Condition 7 states that each reserved matters application shall be
accompanied by a compliance statement explaining how the proposals
accord with the approved Design Guide and Parameters Plan. This
application includes a compliance statement which confirms that the
proposals accord with the Design Guide and Parameters Plans in all
regards with the exception of a slight re-alignment of Hudson Lane
resulting in an opportunity to open up views to the rear of the former
Goods Station building which the applicants see as a benefit to the
scheme. They highlight that at outline stage it was always envisaged
that there would be flexibility in terms of the locations of these secondary
routes. Officers accept this and agree that the change is justified and
would be beneficial both in terms of being able to appreciate the former
Goods Station Building which is grade Il listed and also in terms of
placemaking. The original design intent set out in the Design Guide is
still achieved and this is supported by the Council’s Design and
Conservation Manager and Officers. A full assessment of other aspects
of the design, which align with the Design Guide, are discussed below.

Layout

The application site sits within Development Zone F within the Station
Quarter as defined in the Design Guide and Parameter Plans. The
Station Quarter is envisaged as a new destination for businesses,
tourists and local residents. More specifically, the plot sits within the
Station Quarter’s Cinder Yards which are intended to incorporate two to
three ‘yard’ spaces to assist in daylighting and service access for
adjacent buildings and to provide break out spaces for people working
as well as publicly accessible space which form part of the pedestrian
movement network.

The proposed layout of the site is largely dictated through the outline
permission Parameter Plans which denote the indicative building blocks

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.20

5.21

5.22

5.23

Page 32

and circulation routes. The building has also been positioned so that it
allows a direct view from the proposed station exit to the first arch in the
side wall of the former Goods Station building, this was seen as an
Important aspect guiding the layout of the plot set out at outline stage.

The northern edge of the building would be set back from the edge of
Hudson Boulevard. The Council’'s Design and Conservation Manager
notes that the footprint is tight and regular with the edge of street which
he considers will help make regular well defined and legible future
streets as York Central builds out in the future. He considers the
approach makes sense in the long term as other plots become built out,
completing street enclosure. He notes that the interest of city centre
buildings are often their inner spaces, primary street facade treatments
and cumulative effects of townscape. He considers the layout proposed
Is similar to urban patterns in the historic city centre.

In addition Officers note that other key design intents for the Cinder
Yards set out within the Design Guide are followed, including access
requirements for future adjacent plots, spaces being well overlooked,
active ground floor frontages, access and egress points being
considered as part of the elevation design and ‘snicket’s being
incorporated into the layout.

The Council’s Design and Conservation Manager comments that ground
floor uses are space planned to reflect the degree of public activity of
surrounding streets. The most active uses of the building entrance and
café follow the more public Cinder Street. The relationship of entrances
has been designed with consideration of the external public realm at The
Square being developed under approval 23/01494/REMM. The
Council’'s Design and Conservation Manager considers that the café
element feels a bit boxed in by street equipment and hostile vehicle
protection measures including planters, however notes the wind comfort
study suggests wind blockers are required here. He suggests that a
more detailed study is required with potential simplification of this area,
which could be conditioned. It should be noted that final details of hard
landscaping, including street furniture and hostile vehicle protection
measures would be dealt with through a discharge of condition
application and as such Officers consider that these concerns can be
addressed through this process.

The layout of the building itself is set over six floors with a basement and
provides a private terrace at the fifth floor overlooking public squares and

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

Page 33

the wider City. This gives some beneficial private outdoor space to
office users and is supported by Officers as a design concept.

The red site boundary encompasses Plots F1b and part of Plot F2,
however the application confirms that these would be developed in
future phases and would be demarcated by temporary fencing details of
which are to be agreed through the discharge of Conditions 17
(boundaries) and 24 (site specific landscaping) of the outline consent.

Overall the layout of the site is considered an appropriate response
having regard to the outline parameters and design guide and the
relationship of the site to the approved infrastructure and public realm
schemes.

Scale

The proposed building is set over six stories with a basement level sitting
under part of the northern section of the plot. The building proposes a
uniform height, varied on the eastern side with the incorporation of a roof
terrace at level 5. The overall height of the building would be 43.25m
Above Ordnance Datum (AOD) which is below the maximum of 43.5m
AOD specified at outline stage. In the context of other buildings on site
this compares with The Former Goods Station (Station Hall) at 24.095m
AOD, Central Hall at 26.0m AOD and Great Hall at 34.0m AOD. Itis
recognised that the height of the building may initially appear at odds
with the existing buildings surrounding it. However Officers note this will
be alleviated over time through the building out of other buildings of a
similar height within the wider York Central. It is also recognised that
the proposals sit within the approved parameters for the site which
anticipated a building of this height on this Plot. Overall the height, scale
and massing of the building is as envisaged within the outline consent
and is therefore supported.

Appearance

The Design Guide suggests that Plot F1, would at least in part be
designed as a foreground building which may depart from the
appearance that it suggests background buildings must generally obey.
It notes that the building may use different facade materials, different
forms, facade emphasis may be horizontal rather than vertical and
colour palette may vary. The Design Guide also states that new
buildings shall use a range of brick details to articulate and enrich the
facades in two and three dimensions and in a contemporary manner.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.28

5.29

5.30

Page 34

In terms of the fagade treatment the Council’'s Design and Conservation
Manager comments that it is more varied than first apparent and has a
robust weighty gravitas which is appropriate in this railway context. He
considers that the deep recesses and angled reveal components should
give an interesting play of light. He notes the top floor treatment is
stretched to encompass a roof parapet and he considers this gives a
nice bottom, middle, top balance to the composition with the ground floor
generally being simpler with bigger fagcade openings. In general the long
elevation of Hudson Boulevard is more a repeated rhythm and the end
elevation facing the public squares is more varied and complex. Both
are appropriate for this context. The only criticism the Council’'s Design
and Conservation Manager has of the elevation approach is a feeling of
undifferentiation for some elevations, however he accepts that this is not
unusual or illogical for contemporary office buildings with central service
cores and flexible space making on all sides. Overall the fagcade design
approach is supported and considered appropriate to its railway heritage
context.

With respect to material and colour palette, this is proposed as
brown/red brick and the exploration of material palette is explained
through the design and access statement. The inspiration for this colour
choice is accepted and is appropriate for its railway context. The
Council’s Design and Conservation Manager considers that it may be a
little too monotone chocolate as it doesn’t have the counterpoint of a
prominent different roof material as older buildings do, however it is
accepted that the final material selection and tone will be agreed through
the discharge of condition 16 (material samples). Overall Officers
consider the design response accords with the design guide and gives
an appropriate appearance within the railway context of the site.

Landscaping

The area to the north adjoining Hudson Boulevard does not propose any
soft planting as part of this scheme, however it should be noted that
street trees and planting beds are provided along Hudson Boulevard as
part of the approved infrastructure works. The areas immediately
outside the proposed office building to the east and south would be hard
landscaped with some soft landscaping to be provided by shrub and tree
planting within planting beds along Cinder Snicket with a small number
of street trees continuing the street trees from Cinder Street to the start
of Cinder Snicket. In addition to this further soft landscaping would be
provided within raised beds on the proposed roof terrace.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.31

5.32

5.33

Page 35

The submitted Sustainability Statement states landscaping should
include native species, including shrubs/trees providing food year round,
a combination of planting and basking areas, and shelter which allow for
all lifecycles of invertebrate species, native wildflower mixes, planting of
common birds-foot trefoil being of particular importance for a range of
priority invertebrate species. Other key floral species are recommended
where possible and include red clover, red fescue and yarrow.

Officers raised some concern that the proposed soft landscaping
scheme submitted did not align with the recommendations within the
Applicants Sustainability Statement in terms of supporting priority
invertebrate species. In response to this the Applicants have clarified
that whilst the external landscaping is predominantly non-native, scrub
and flowering species may still provide some nectar resources for local
invertebrates and their larvae. They explain that non-native trees have
been chosen due to their amenity/appearance and tolerance for urban
settings which are often more drought resistant. Street trees have been
amended to a cultivar of the only native maple. The Applicants also
explain their reasoning behind the species chosen for the roof terrace,
which need to be hardy and robust species.

The Council’s Ecologist has reviewed the soft landscaping proposed and
has raised no objections based on the revised information presented.
The Council’s Landscape Architect has commented that the soft planting
Is very limited however the planting proposed, although ornamental,
provides a good food source but notes this is probably not as good as a
wildflower meadow. It is however accepted that wildflowers are
generally better over a larger and more open area. The use of the 3no.
Acer Campestre for the street trees are supported. She notes that
native plants may prove to be the best choice on the roof terrace and the
flowering native content could be improved here. In terms of the
biodiverse roof she accepts the proposed mix. She also notes that there
is potential to include species such as yarrow within the herbaceous
layer and there are plenty of other native perennials that can be included
to aesthetically fit with an otherwise non-native ornamental planting
scheme. Itis noted that the final planting species mix can be addressed
further through the discharge of Condition 24 (site specific landscaping)
of the outline consent which requires a detailed scheme for hard and soft
landscaping and as such the Landscape’s Architects comments can be
taken into account further once the discharge of conditions application is
submitted and as such no further landscape conditions are required.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 36

5.34 With respect to hard landscaping the submitted hardworks layout sets

5.35

5.36

5.37

5.38

out the intended hard surfacing materials to tie in with the materials used
within the adjoining infrastructure works. It also shows indicative
locations for benches. Condition 24 of the outline consent requires
locations and details of public art, hard landscape works, including walls,
steps ramps, paving materials and hard surfacing, details of street
furniture and boundary treatments. It is therefore accepted that whilst
the indicative details shown are acceptable in principle these will be
finalised through the discharge of Condition 24 (site specific
landscaping) which can also address the concerns raised by the
Council’s Design and Conservation Manager regarding the outdoor
seating area being boxed in by street furniture/planters.

Sustainability measures

Condition 50 of the outline consent requires sustainability measures
relating to energy, water and waste to be incorporated. Condition 51 of
the outline consent expects development to achieve at least a BREEAM
rating of Excellent.

The application is accompanied by a Sustainability Statement in line with
Condition 50 of the outline consent. The statement confirms that the
building would generate 24% less carbon emissions than a building
designed to Building Regulations 2021 Part L and this would be
achieved through a combination of energy efficiency measures including
air source heat pumps for heating and photovoltaics for renewable
energy generation. It states the proposed building is also targeting an
Energy Performance Certificate A rating.

In terms of water consumption it is expected that the Government Hub
would deliver a 65% improvement over a baseline building. It is intended
that a rainwater harvesting system would provide water for flushing
toilets and serving irrigation systems. Material efficiency and the use of
recycled and sustainably sourced construction materials is also
intended. The building has also been designed with consideration of
climate change in terms of passive cooling measures (external shading,
cool materials, green roof), ventilation and air conditioning, maximising
permeable outside spaces and suitable drainage.

The Sustainability Statement advises that the proposals are targeting a
BREEAM rating of Outstanding and explains how the development has
been designed to achieve this. An achievement of Outstanding would

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.39

5.40

5.41

Page 37

exceed the required ‘Excellent’ standard which York Central aspires to
achieve.

The Council’s Carbon Reduction Project Officer has confirmed that the
Applicant has demonstrated that at least a 28% reduction in carbon
emissions can be achieved which will meet the requirements of
Condition 50 and Policy CC1 of the Draft Local Plan. In addition they
confirm that the applicant has demonstrated that a BREEAM
Outstanding score can be achieved and will therefore exceed the
requirements of Condition 51 and Policy CC2 of the Draft Local Plan.
The Council are therefore satisfied with the contents of the Sustainability
Statement which demonstrates that the proposals comply with policy and
meet the requirements of Conditions 50 and 51 of the outline consent.

Designing Out Crime

With respect to designing out crime, the application considers matters
such as movement, active surveillance, lighting and hostile vehicle
measures within the design. North Yorkshire Police Designing Out
Crime Officer has confirmed that the proposals are acceptable from a
crime and disorder perspective. The Council are satisfied that designing
out crime has been and continues to be considered and it will be
addressed in further detail prior to commencement through the
discharge of condition 19 (secure by design measures) of the outline
consent which requires further detail of CCTV, security lighting, secure
vehicle and cycle parking amongst other measures.

Townscape and Visual Impact

In terms of the townscape and visual impacts arising from the proposals
these were assessed at outline stage as part of the Townscape Visual
Impact Assessment (TVIA) based on the maximum height and massing
parameters set within the Parameter Plans. This reserved matters
application sits within the limits of deviation and height parameters set
out at outline permissionstage. The application confirms that the
development will be visible above York Station from the City Walls, as
anticipated at outline stage, however the development allows the visual
permeability and views through the site towards the Yorkshire Dales and
key views of historic features of York to be retained. The application
confirms that in designing the building consideration has been given to
the composition, materiality and the appearance of the top floor parapets
with plant enclosure concealing any plant elements to lessen any visual
impacts. Officers are satisfied that based on the plans submitted, there

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.42

5.43

5.44

5.45

Page 38

are no new townscape or visual impacts beyond those identified at
outline stage as such the Environmental Statement remains valid and
the proposals are acceptable.

Overall in terms of all design aspects discussed above, the proposed
building accords with the design parameters set out at outline permission
stage and is a good design quality benchmark which should positively
contribute to the townscape of York Central and the wider city.

HIGHWAYS MATTERS

Relevant Policies

The NPPF paragraph 96 states that planning decisions should aim to
achieve healthy, inclusive and safe places which a) promote social
interaction for example through street layouts that allow for easy
pedestrian and cycle connections within and between neighbourhoods,
b) are safe and accessible for example through the use of beautiful, well-
designed, clear and legible pedestrian and cycle routes and high quality
public space and c) enable and support healthy lifestyles for example
through layouts that encourage walking and cycling.

Paragraph 108 states transport issues should be considered from the
earliest stages so that patterns of movement, streets, parking and other
transport considerations are integral to the design and contribute to
making high quality places. Paragraph 114 advises that appropriate
opportunities to promote sustainable transport modes can be or have
been taken up and safe and suitable access to the site can be achieved
for all users. Paragraph 116 goes on to state that within this context
applications should give priority first to pedestrians and cycle movement,
address the needs of people with disabilities and reduced mobility in
relation to all modes of transport, create places that are safe, secure and
attractive, which minimise the scope for conflicts between pedestrians,
cyclists and vehicles, avoid unnecessary street clutter and respond to
local character and design standards and allow the efficient delivery of
goods and access by service and emergency vehicles.

Local Plan policy T1 relates to sustainable access and requires
development to demonstrate there is safe and appropriate access to the
adjacent adopted highway for motor vehicles but also for pedestrians
and cyclists, they provide suitable access, permeability and circulation
for a range of transport modes whilst giving priority to pedestrians
(particularly those with impaired mobility), cyclists and public transport

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.46

5.47

5.48

Page 39

services and they provide, sufficient convenient, secure and covered
cycle storage and restrict access or discourage general motor vehicle
traffic.

Assessment

Access

The main pedestrian access to the building for staff and visitors is
located on the north-eastern side, accessed via either Hudson Boulevard
or The Square, both of which are being built out under separate reserved
matters consents. A further access to the independent retail unit is on
the eastern side of the building. Officers consider the accesses are
within the most logical position off the main pedestrian access route
through York Central when approaching from the City Centre. The
submitted sustainability statement confirms that key elements of the
building have been designed with access in mind including the main
entrance doors having easy access for a range of users, there is dual
entrance to cycle stores, ease of general circulation on all levels, internal
doors on main circulation routes are minimised, accessible passenger
lifts, accessible toilets at all levels and step free access for the roof
terrace.

Externally the pedestrian footways to the north and east of the building
would be constructed up to those works approved on Hudson Boulevard
and The Square which have already gained planning consent. New
routes for access for pedestrians and cyclists would be provided through
the construction of Cinder Snicket and Hudson Lane. Following initial
discussions with the Council’s Access and Highway Officers some layout
amendments to footways, kerbing, bollards and guarding around the
blue badge parking have been submitted in order to take into account
accessibility for people with mobility issues and in order to ensure
pedestrians are appropriately prioritised. Highway Officers comment
that the design is now generally acceptable, however note that within the
discharge of conditions application we will require further detail of the
HVM bollards and barrier/boundary to the car parking areas. In addition
appropriate tactile surfacing and dropped kerbs to allow users to safely
access the building will need to be shown as the extent of these is not
clear on the submitted plans. It is accepted that the discharge of
Conditions 17,19 and 24 of the outline consent would address this.

Highway Officers have previously advised the Applicant of concerns that
the width of Cinder Snicket is not LTN 1/20 compliant as it would require

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.49

5.50

5.51

Page 40

a minimum of 3m for shared use by pedestrians and cyclists with
additional width of 2.5m if there are vertical features in the way. The
Applicants highlight the fact that LTN1/20 is guidance and that the
overall width of Cinder Snicket is 7.4m with a central landscape strip with
pathways either side and opportunities to move between the landscaping
strips. Officers note that Cinder Snicket is 2.4m on the northern side and
2m on the south side, which should be a sufficient width to
accommodate the low level pedestrian and cycle usage envisaged,
particularly given that the majority of pedestrians and cyclists would be
using Hudson Boulevard as the primary route.

With respect to cycle access, cycle parking would be contained within
three separate rooms accessed via doors at the rear (south) of the
building off Cinder Snicket. Active Travel England have raised some
concern that the cycle parking is within three separate rooms, however
CYC Highway Officers do not agree with these concerns and consider
smaller cycle stores are generally safer to use, they are therefore
satisfied with the Applicants approach. In terms of accessing the internal
cycle parking Officers raised concerns that the natural desire line for
cyclists, if coming from the City Centre, would be across a small section
of pedestrian area off Cinder Street and along Cinder Snicket. The
Applicants consider this will not be the used and access will either be
along Hudson Boulevard and Hudson Lane or via Cinder Street and
along Hudson Lane. Whilst this may be the route the users will be
encouraged to take they are likely to take the quickest route. Itis
however noted that this could be effectively managed through surfacing,
street furniture or signage to dissuade users from this route. All of these
details are covered by existing conditions which will come forward for
discharge in future and as such there are mechanisms to ensure that
this is safely managed.

In terms of servicing access there would be a new vehicular access
created off Cinder Street, referred to as Hudson Lane, this would provide
an off-street service area and access to an internal loading bay within
the western side of the building. Waste collection and emergency
vehicle access would also be via this route. A rejection loop would be
created at the entrance to the site access so that unauthorised vehicles
can safely re-enter Cinder Street. The rejection loop has been amended
in design following discussions with the Council’s Highway and Access
Officers.

Overall with respect to the layout, positioning and treatment of access
and circulation routes and how these fit into the surrounding access

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.52

5.53

5.54

Page 41

network Officers are satisfied that the proposals are acceptable subject
to minor details coming through future discharge of conditions.

Car Parking

The application has been amended from the original submission to
remove all staff and visitor car parking which was shown to be provided
on a temporary basis within areas of the site already granted approval at
outline stage. Officers support the removal of temporary car parking
spaces in principle subject to appropriate measures being included
within the Travel Plan which is discussed further below.

With respect to blue badge parking, following a meeting with the
Council’s Highway and Access Officers they advised that the level of
blue badge parking needed to be increased from the two spaces
originally proposed to between eighteen and twenty one. Highway
Officers based this figure on data regarding the number of blue badges
held locally in the working age population. The Applicants advise that
there are various methods of calculating the required number of blue
badge spaces and demonstrate that using each of their methods of
calculation results in a requirement for around six spaces. They
maintain that six spaces is an appropriate level of blue badge parking for
an office of this size however have revised the scheme and
accommodated sixteen spaces to satisfy the Highway and Access
Officers concerns. Eight spaces would be within the service yard off
Hudson Lane and eight would be to the south of the plot. Given the
Applicants consider this an over provision they have requested that a
suitably worded condition be added to any decision notice which enables
them to monitor the use of blue badge spaces once the building is
occupied and if there is an over-provision that these spaces could be
later removed. They anticipate that the eight spaces which form part of
Plot F1b are unlikely to be required, based on their experience of other
office buildings. Officers and CYC Highways have agreed that this is an
appropriate way forward and a condition is therefore recommended.

Cycle parking

Following initial comments from CYC Highways and Active Travel
England the Applicants have increased their cycle parking provision to
secure a minimum of 230 long stay spaces within the building, with 10 of
these spaces being for non-standard cycles. For short stay use there
would be 20 short stay spaces to the east of the plot which includes 8
spaces for adaptive bicycles. A further 16 short stay spaces are to be

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.55

5.56

5.57

Page 42

delivered as part of The Square located east of the main entrance.
There is also a requirement as part of Condition 44 of the outline
consent that prior to occupation of Plot F details of a cycle hub to provide
a minimum of 330 spaces is to be submitted and approved, this would
provide opportunities for further cycle parking. Active Travel England
and CYC Highway Officers have confirmed that they are satisfied with
the level of cycle parking provision proposed, which has been increased
since the original submission. A condition is however recommended so
that the final layout and design of the internal spaces is agreed.

Travel Plan/Encouraging Sustainable Transport Modes

The outline planning application was supported by a Framework Travel
Plan (FTP) which provided an initial site-wide structure for a proposed 15
year sustainable travel strategy to be implemented. The FTP contained a
limited level of detail however it was accepted that this would be
developed further at reserved matters stage. Condition 37 of the outline
consent also sets out that each reserved matters application for a
building shall include a development specific Travel Plan to be approved
prior to occupation and this must thereafter be adhered to.

The application site itself is within an excellent location in close proximity
to York Railway Station which operates regular train services to London
Kings Cross, Edinburgh, Leeds and Newcastle. With respect to bus
services, it is intended that the bus services serving the existing
residential area to the north-west will be diverted into the York Central
site. The Poppleton P&R Service would stop on Cinder Street close to
the building with Askham Bar P&R, Designer Outlet P&R and Monks
Cross P&R stops outside the front of the Railway Station.

The application is accompanied by an Outline Travel Plan (OTP) which
will inform a Full Travel Plan. The long term aim of the Travel Plan is to
reduce reliance on car and increase use of public transport or other
sustainable modes of travel such as walking and cycling. The Outline
Travel Plan identifies the accessibility of the site to local amenities by
foot and bicycle and sets out the variety of public transport networks
available and their frequency. The OTP suggests that the Full Travel
Plan will seek to decrease the mode share of car drivers accessing the
site to 5%, CYC Highway Officers consider that to achieve a car free
development this needs to be reduced further to 1.5% through the
increase in use of other transport modes. They agree this can be dealt
with through a robust Full Travel Plan submitted through the discharge of
Condition 37.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.58

5.59

5.60

Page 43

The OTP suggests all employees are to be provided with a Travel
Welcome Pack to influence travel choice, reduce employees and visitors
travelling by solo car and increase use of public transport. In addition it
encourages efficient and organised deliveries and servicing for the office
and retail uses through implementation of a Delivery and Servicing
Strategy. The OTP references accessibility for employees to Enterprise
Car Club and potential for a Car Share club. Other incentives are
suggested to encourage use of walking and cycling such as discounted
equipment, folding bike trials, maps etc. CYC Highway Officers have
highlighted the need to make sure the Full Travel Plan provides firm
commitments, particularly in terms of staff resourcing and budget to
strongly incentivise sustainable modes of transport to achieve the car
free development proposed. They consider the Outline Travel Plan is
currently too modest in its commitments and as such the Applicant will
need to ensure that this is fully addressed in the Full Travel Plan to
satisfy these concerns and to discharge Condition 37 of the outline
consent.

The Outline Travel Plan envisages that the low level of parking provision
together with a requirement that future office occupiers will comply with a
Full Travel Plan should encourage the use of sustainable modes of
travel. If staff do choose to travel by car the OTP identifies where car
parking provision is within the City Centre and how accessible this is to
the site by foot. The submission anticipates that staff and visitors to the
building would either park in existing City Centre car parks or within the
City’s Park and Ride sites. The application states that there are 975
public car parking spaces within 1.1km of the site, accessible on foot via
existing walking routes. Within 1.5km of the site there are 2,000 public
car parking spaces accessible by foot. A further 5020 spaces are
provided across the six park and ride sites located on the outer ring
road. These are accessible by the park and ride bus services.

CYC Highway Officers have expressed concern that as the City Centre
car parks are intended to accommodate visitors rather than commuters,
a reliance on these by staff may result in displacement of vehicles onto
residential streets. Officers consider that the City Centre car parks
should not be considered as a valid option for use by commuters on a
daily basis. Furthermore, they raise concerns that there is currently no
analysis of available capacity at the car parks to show that parking could
be accommodated without displacement. The Applicants response to
this is that the Section 106 monies already secured as part of the outline
consent allow for residential parking measures to be brought forward on

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.61

Page 44

those streets deemed at risk. CYC Highways note that current
residential parking measures included in the Section 106 agreement
would not be sufficient to cover all residential areas within walking
catchment. Despite reference to use of City Centre car parks, the
Applicants anticipate that the majority of day-to-day parking demands
would be taken up by Park and Ride, particularly given that there will be
a bus stop very close to the proposed office building with other stops
near to the site. CYC Highways comment that there are significant bus
capacity issues which will need to be addressed on the Poppleton P&R
service. They also note that no additional contribution is sought to
address this as the S106 was agreed at outline approval stage on the
basis that multi storey car parks would be provided and that Rawcliffe
Bar P&R would also service the site, which is no longer possible due to
the types of vehicles used on this service and height restrictions on
Leeman Road Tunnel. Highways Officers therefore advise that taking
this into account as well as the significant P&R mode share the
Applicants will be relying on, more will need to be done to improve the
A59 Poppleton P&R service which will stop closest to consider additional
vehicles, more frequent service and longer operating hours. Highway
Officers consider this can be addressed through the Full Travel Plan and
its targets which will need to be agreed with the Local Authority.

Officers note that there are a number of ways in which the outline
consent envisaged controlling travel and parking. Firstly the Outline
Travel Plan states that a detailed phasing strategy for car parking which
includes all existing, any temporary and proposed short and long stay
public car parking and car parking associated with approved commercial
uses and the number of spaces available for use at all times is required
in order to discharge Condition 12 of the outline consent. In addition
Condition 37 requires a detailed development specific Travel Plan to be
submitted prior to occupation. Condition 48 of the outline consent
relates to site wide parking management, the first part of this condition
requires a strategy to be approved prior to first use (i.e the road being
brought into use) this will need to be discharged accordingly. The
second part of the condition requires a site specific strategy to be
approved. The Applicants intention is that measures within the Full
Travel Plan would encourage use of Park and Rides or other public
transport modes. CYC Highways remain concerned regarding any
parking displacement and impacts on existing P&R services, but accept
that there is an opportunity through discharge of conditions to address
this in detail.

Servicing

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.62

5.63

5.64

5.65

Page 45

Condition 49 of the outline consent requires each reserved matters
application to include a site specific servicing strategy which will need to
be discharged through a discharge of condition application. The OTP
states that an off street service area will be provided from Hudson Lane,
accessed via Cinder Street. The layout accommodates a rejection loop
should vehicles not be allowed into the service yard which enables them
to safely rejoin the highway. The Applicants advise that a pre-booking
system would be in place to ensure the servicing bay is used effectively
during typical daily usage in order to manage demand on space. The
site provides for a holding area to offer some resilience should another
vehicle turn up unscheduled, so that they can be held until the service
yard is clear or turned away if they have not pre-booked. Delivery and
servicing for the retail space would be either on-street or using the yard
accessed from Hudson Lane. A waste store would be provided at
ground level so outgoing waste could be consolidated and readily
collected from the kerbside.

Following initial comments from Highways and the Council’'s Access
Officer amendments have been made to this loop to address any
concerns. CYC Highways are now satisfied with the layout proposed.

Construction Traffic Impacts

It is intended that construction traffic routing will be addressed through
the Construction Environmental Management Plan which would need to
be discharged through Condition 15 of the outline consent prior to
commencement of development.

Highway Conclusions

Having had regard to all the highway related issues CYC Highways
confirm that overall the reserved matters pertaining to the layout and
access is acceptable in highway terms. It is acknowledged that the
development being zero parking, except for blue badge spaces with
greater reliance on sustainable transport modes is a shift from what was
anticipated at outline stage, however it accepted in principle on the basis
that discharge of conditions, particularly with respect to a robust Full
Travel Plan being submitted can further address any concerns regarding
parking and travel behaviours. The proposals are therefore in
accordance with the NPPF and Local Plan Policies set out above.
Furthermore the Environmental Compliance Statement confirms that the

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.66

5.67

5.68

5.69

Page 46

there are no additional effects than were reported in the traffic and
transport chapter, and as a result the conclusions of the ES remain valid.

HERITAGE IMPACTS

Relevant Policies

Applications should also be considered in accordance with the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, which states in
section 66(1) that local authorities shall have ‘special regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting’ when considering
proposals affecting listed buildings or their settings.

Chapter 16 of the NPPF sets out how LPAs should approach
determining applications that affect heritage assets. Paragraph 200
states that in determining applications, local planning authorities should
require an applicant to describe the significance of any heritage assets
affected, including the contribution made by their setting. It goes on to
state that where a site on which development proposed includes, or has
the potential to include, heritage assets with archaeological interest,
local planning authorities should require developers to submit an
appropriate desk based assessment. Paragraph 208 states that where
development will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of
a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal.

Policy D5 of the Draft Local Plan states that harm to the significance of a
Listed Building or its setting will be permitted only where this is
outweighed by the public benefits of the proposal. Policy D6 relates to
archaeology and sets out the instances when development proposals
that affect archaeological features and deposits will be supported.

Assessment

Impact on Designated and Non-Designated Heritage Assets

The impacts on heritage assets are assessed in the context of whether
the detailed proposals submitted accord with the outline design
parameters, dictated through a heritage assessment and whether the
conclusions of the ES remain valid. The outline consent ES included a
Heritage Statement which set out the baseline description of key
heritage assets within and around the site. The report recognises that
the York Central site still contains many railway buildings seen at the

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.70

5.71

Page 47

turn of the twentieth century and valued as part of York’s industrial
heritage. The most significant buildings being the former Goods Station,
which sits north of the site, with its unusually intact sequence of Goods
Station, Weigh Office and entrance Gateposts all of which are Grade Il
listed and still associated with a surviving Coal Office and a remnant of
the Coal Depot. The buildings are important examples which discern
how Victorian processes for handling goods and coal operated following
the introduction of the railways. The buildings are considered to have
greater significance when considered as an ensemble rather than a set
of individual buildings. The outline consent ES acknowledges that the
multiple lines of railings and fencing together with the significant levels of
parking currently detract from the setting of these buildings. Therefore at
outline stage it was recognised that the York Central development
offered positive opportunities for the setting of heritage assets.

This reserved matters application is accompanied by a Heritage
Statement which considers the impact of the development on the setting
of the grade Il listed group of former Good Station buildings, Grade II*
listed York Railway Station and the preservation of key views from the
Grade | listed City Walls and York Minster as well as the setting of the
historic core conservation area in line with the assessments undertaken
at outline stage.

The existing site somewhat detracts from the setting of the listed
buildings given the extensive hardstanding and parking, this was
acknowledged within the outline consent. Despite this the Heritage
Statement acknowledges that the site is still readable as a former railway
siding which may become less legible following the proposed
development. It also recognises that approaching the complex from the
south, there will be a considerable change in experience given the low
density area punctuated by former railway ancillary structures to that of a
high density commercial district. The report considers that the impact of
the taller building has been minimised through the design response
which carefully considers the surrounding historic environment. It is
acknowledged that the change to the site will result in a degree of harm
to significance, however it is considered that this will be limited by the
mitigation embedded within the building design. The report concludes
that there will be less than substantial harm to the significance of the
former Goods Station and would fall at the lower end of the spectrum. It
considers that the proposals would not harm the setting of the other
listed structures within the Goods Station complex. This assessment is
accepted by Officers and Historic England.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.72

5.73

5.74

5.75

Page 48

The report also considers the proposals would also not harm the
significance of the setting of York Station and York Historic Core
Conservation Area which are within the setting of the site. With respect
to the wider setting consideration is given to the impact on views from
York City Walls and how views towards York Minster and Clifford’s
Tower will be affected. The report notes that the maximum height
parameters contained in the outline consent ensure that the viewing
corridor from the City Walls across the York Central site towards the
Yorkshire Dales are preserved and the design accords with these
parameters. The report concludes that the proposals would not result in
harm to the significance of the City Walls and will preserve identified key
views. The proposals will provide a terrace at roof level to frame views
towards the Minster which building users will be able to appreciate.
There would be minimal visibility from Clifford’s Tower towards the site
due to existing buildings almost entirely obscuring views. The report
confirms there would therefore be no harm to the significance of these
important buildings.

Officers agree with the level of harm identified in the heritage statement
and that the proposals in respects of all heritage assets results in less
than substantial harm. Historic England have raised no concerns on
heritage grounds and note the comments from the Council’s
Conservation Team. It should also be noted that no objections have
been raised from the Council’s Design and Conservation Manager with
respect to conservation or heritage.

In accordance with the NPPF the less than substantial harm to the
setting of the heritage assets identified has to be weighed against the
public benefits of the proposal. The Applicants identify these public
benefits as:

- Provision of a flagship building of very high architectural design
quality occupying a key position on the proposed public square and
alongside a new public boulevard;

- A building targeting BREEAM Outstanding;

- High quality regeneration of a brownfield site;

- Economic benefits and employment opportunities for York and the
surrounding area,;

- Providing vitality in the new Station quarter contributing to increased
public access to the Former NER Goods Station Complex.

The application clearly sets out the public benefits derived from the
scheme as referenced above and the economic benefits in particular are

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.76

S5.77

5.78

Page 49

articulated in the response from the Council’s Economic Development
Team. Officers consider that the less than substantial harm to the
setting of the heritage assets identified within the Heritage Assessment
Is outweighed by the public benefits comprising the significant economic,
social and environmental benefits the proposals will bring not only to the
City of York but also as a cornerstone of the York Central development.
The proposals align with the Environmental Statement submitted at
outline and as such are accepted.

Archaeology

The area around York Central has produced significant archaeological
remains and the wider site is a complex landscape that has significant
potential to preserve locally, regionally, nationally and internationally
significant archaeological features and deposits. Despite the York
Central site being heavily impacted by the construction of the railway
infrastructure in many areas it is believed that there will be pockets of in-
situ undisturbed archaeological remains in areas where the natural
topography was built-up as part of the 19" century levelling works.

The application is submitted with an Archaeological Remains
Management Plan (ARMP) as required by Condition 68 of the outline
consent. The ARMP contains a summary of all archaeological monitoring
and evaluation work which has taken place, particularly where relevant
to this scheme. The investigation that has taken place across the site
over the past 5 years, particularly over the past 2 years has further
defined where pre-railway archaeological layers are likely to be
encountered.

The City Archaeologist notes that the northern part of Plot F1 has been
subject to 19" century ground reduction and landscaping. The
archaeological layers across the proposed government hub building
footprint have been removed. Therefore the City Archaeologist has no
issues with the creation of a basement at this location and has confirmed
that the proposals accord with Condition 69 of the outline consent in
terms of the extent and location of the baesment. The southern half of
plot F1 has the potential to contain further Roman deposits remaining on
the periphery of the cemetery area where landscaping has not fully
removed the archaeological layer at the base of the original slope which
extended into this area. While there are no known organic deposits in
the development area there is a chance of survival beneath 19" century
landscaping in the southern part of the plot. Therefore in line with the

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.79

5.80

5.81

5.82

Page 50

recommendations of the ARMP further evaluation is required in the
southern half of the plot. This will confirm whether any:

- In-situ organic remains

- Elements of the Roman cemetery

- Of the structure shown on the 1%t edition OS plan survive beneath 19™"
century landscaping.

The results of the evaluation will determine whether any further, specific
mitigation measures are required and will help inform future
archaeological management decisions in the Plot F area. This will be
determined following evaluation exercise and confirmation of the impact
depths required for any services, attenuation, landscaping and road
construction. It is noted that whilst included in the red site boundary,
there is currently no proposed new build within the southern half of the
plot.

In the northern area, archaeological monitoring will take place as a
precaution during the excavation of basement level. The Council’s
Archaeologist has therefore confirmed that an archaeology condition is
required to secure this.

Historic England have noted the comments provided by the City
Archaeologist and are content to endorse and defer to their advice and
recommendations. The proposals are therefore considered acceptable
with respect to the approach to archaeology which align with the
recommendations within the ES.

ECOLOGY/BIO-DIVERSITY

Relevant Policies

The NPPF paragraphs 180 to 188 relate to conserving and enhancing
habitats and biodiversity. In particular Paragraph 180 states that
planning decisions should contribute to and enhance the natural and
local environment by (amongst other criteria) minimising impacts on and
providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing coherent
ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future
pressures. Policy GI2 of the Draft Local Plan requires development to
conserve and enhance York'’s biodiversity by proposals resulting in a net
gain to and helping to improve biodiversity. Policy Gl4 supports
development which supplements the city’s tree stock with new tree
planting.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.83

5.84

5.85

5.86

Page 51

Assessment

Impact on Habitats and Protected Species

The York Central site as a whole contains extensive areas (9.18ha.) of
ephemeral habitat (e.g. the limestone ballast of railway sidings). This is
considered to be the most ecologically significant habitat on site due to
the invertebrate assemblage it supports, and in part as there are unlikely
to be any other sites supporting this extent of habitat elsewhere in York
and North Yorkshire. The Ecological Impact Assessment submitted
within the outline Environment Statement (ES) concluded that the loss of
this habitat will result in a permanent moderate adverse effect on
ephemeral vegetation and minor adverse effect on scrub and tall ruderal
and broadleaved woodland. The ES set out mitigation which would be
embedded into the design which comprised of planting 0.43ha of
woodland, provision of 0.95ha of ephemeral vegetation, 2180m of green
corridor consisting of hedgerow with minimum planting of 80+ trees,
creation of 465m of SuDS and 0.4ha wetland waterbody habitat with
retained habitats fenced off with a buffer zone, sitting alongside a LEMP
outlining maintenance post construction. Following this mitigation it was
accepted at outline consent stage that there would be a significant
impact on habitat loss arising from the York Central scheme as a whole.

Whilst this habitat loss was accepted at outline stage, given the extent of
this loss it is extremely important that each reserved matters scheme
brought forward includes appropriate mitigation and habitat
retention/enhancement.

A number of ecological surveys on specific species were also
undertaken at outline stage, however it was recognised that these were
to provide baseline information and would need to be updated for each
reserved matters phase to reflect changes in the distribution or
abundance of mobile species on the site. Condition 28 of the outline
consent therefore required that application(s) for each reserved matters
shall include an up to date (no more than 2 years old) Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal (PEA) and any further necessary habitat or species
surveys as recommended by the appraisal.

This application is accompanied by a Preliminary Ecological Appraisal
(PEA) Report dated November 2023. The report recognises that there is
limited habitat within the site suitable for bats and that any tree and
scrub clearance is to be undertaken as part of the approved

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.87

5.88

5.89

Page 52

infrastructure works. Whilst the former LNER Traders Store for
Associated Biscuit Manufacturers Building is the only building on site
which may have moderate bat roost potential it is recognised that the
demolition of this and other buildings found to have negligible potential
would be undertaken through the outline consent granted and the
ecological surveys which informed this consent. The report therefore
advises that there is no necessity in this instance for further surveys.
With respect to nesting birds and invertebrates whilst there is limited
vegetation present on the site, there are some suitable habitats within
and adjacent and as such consideration is given to the potential impacts
on these species.

The PEA Report also considers the presence and potential impacts on
habitats for amphibians, badger, reptiles, red squirrel and establishes
that there is no evidence on site of habitats suitable to support these
species and as such no further survey or recommendations are made.

The PEA Report sets out a series of mitigation measures for habitats lost
which includes the planting of native trees and shrubs within the soft
landscaping scheme and the incorporation of bird boxes. The report
notes that although habitats present are of low biodiversity value a
relatively high number of plant species were recorded including suitable
habitat for the priority species dingy skipper (butterfly species). It
therefore recommends that a greater number of plant species are
incorporated in the landscaping plans to ensure a diverse range of floral
species are available for invertebrate species as food plants. It also
recommends that species planting should be tailored towards retaining
suitability for dingy skipper and other notable invertebrates.

The PEA Report notes that there is potentially non-invasive species on
the site it advises this will be cleared as part of the infrastructure works.
The report advises that the Applicants seek specialist advice on its
removal. Condition 29 of the outline consent requires that should any
invasive species, as identified under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981, be identified on-site, an invasive non-native species protocol shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
The protocol will detail the containment, control and removal of the
invasive non-native species and the measures shall be carried out in
accordance with the approved scheme. This will need to be discharged
should all the invasive species not be cleared as part of previous
consents.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 53

5.90 The Council’s Ecologist has considered the Preliminary Ecological

5.91

5.92

5.93

Appraisal Report and impacts on protected species and habitats and has
raised no objections to the proposals. The report submitted is in line
with current guidance and does not raise any further concerns regarding
ecological receptors. Impacts during construction can be covered by
Condition 15 of the outline consent which requires a Construction
Environmental Management Plan to be submitted and approved prior to
commencement. On the basis of the above the proposals accord with
the outline consent ES in that there have been no significant changes
with respect to the habitats or species within the site and as such
ecological impacts remain as originally envisaged.

Biodiversity Enhancement

With respect to biodiversity enhancement, Condition 30 of the outline
consent requires each reserved matters application to provide a
Biodiversity Enhancement Management Plan (BEMP) for the creation of
new wildlife features to secure net gains for biodiversity. It advises that
these will include bat roost, bee bricks and bird nesting features within
new buildings and structures, native species-rich landscaping and
incorporation of ‘open mosaic habitat’ including green/brown biodiverse
roofs.

The application is supported by a BEMP which sets out the proposed
biodiversity enhancement measures which includes tree and pole
mounted bat and bird boxes and an insect hotel, indicative locations for
these are provided with precise locations to be agreed once the lighting
strategy has been finalised. The Preliminary Ecology Appraisal also sets
out measures of biodiversity enhancement which can be incorporated
into the site which include the planting of native species including
plants/shrubs to provide year round food to provide foraging for birds,
bats and insects. A green biodiverse roof will have the benefit of
providing planting areas which are particularly favourable with
invertebrates, provided that a diverse range of native wildflower is
provided. As well as planting it recommends that pebbles or substrate
be provided to allow invertebrates to bask. Deadwood or logs or artificial
refugia features are also recommended. Wildflower together with birds-
foot trefoil is recommended as particular importance for a range of
invertebrate species. Key floral species recommended are: birds-foot
trefoil, red clover, red fescue, yarrow, betony and horseshow vetch.

The Council’s Ecologist and Landscape Architect have reviewed the soft
landscaping scheme proposed and have made some recommendations

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.94

5.95

5.96

5.97

Page 54

on plant species, noting the final scheme will be discharged through
Condition 24 of the outline consent. The Council’s Ecologist expressed
concern that the siting of the bat and bird boxes are to be installed in
areas which will receive high footfall and high light levels, and there were
concerns that these features are unlikely to be used by wildlife and are
likely to be damaged or removed. The Applicants responded to advise
that whilst it is recognised that external lighting could negatively impact
the success of pole mounted habitat boxes, they have identified
locations within Cinder Snicket (a secondary route) where they could be
located. The Council’s Ecologist and Officers accept this approach and
agree that further details could be secured by conditions, in a similar way
to the approach taken at The Square.

Landscape and Ecological Management Plan (LEMP)

In line with Condition 31 of the outline consent, the application is
supported by a Landscape and Ecological Management Plan which sets
out the intentions for habitat creation including the variety of tree and
plant species intended to be incorporated into the scheme, together with
a regime for how these habitats would be managed. The contents of this
report are noted and no objections have been raised by the Council’s
Ecologist.

With respect to the impacts on habitats and species and securing
biodiversity net gain the proposals are considered acceptable, given the
limitations of the site in terms of external areas available for soft
landscaping. The proposals align with the ES and no new impacts have
been identified.

FLOOD RISK AND DRAINAGE

Relevant Policies

Section 14 of the NPPF relates to meeting the challenge of climate
change, flooding and coastal change. Paragraphs 165 to 175 set out the
approach to assessing flood risk and drainage. Paragraph 175 states
that major developments should incorporate sustainable drainage
systems unless there is clear evidence that this would be inappropriate.

Policy ENV5 of the Draft Local Plan sets out the approach to achieving
sustainable drainage.

Assessment

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



5.98

5.99

Page 55

Flooding

The application site is located within flood zone 1 and as such is at low
probability of flooding. Flood risk matters relating to the wider site were
addressed as part of the outline consent and as such no further
assessment is required.

Drainage

At outline approval stage it was confirmed that separate foul, surface
water and highway water drainage systems would be utilised as
investigations had shown that infiltration methods of surface water
disposal were not suitable. A series of drainage conditions (73 to 82)
were attached at outline stage which require formal discharge prior to
commencement.

5.100 The application confirms that the drainage system has been designed

to ensure there is no on site or off site flooding, it explains that the site
has been carefully graded to facilitate natural drainage away from the
building during heavy rainfall events and the rainwater harvesting tank
proposed is sized to handle expected rainwater volume from the roof.
An overflow is positioned to connect to the surface water drainage
network below ground in events of heavy rainfall.

5.101 The site falls within two drainage catchment areas one discharging to

Yorkshire Water Surface Water Sewer and the other to Holgate Beck,
the surface water drainage networks are being delivered as part of the
approved infrastructure works and associated discharge of conditions
applications. The submitted Drainage Strategy confirms that peak flows
will be limited using viable SuDs features including rainwater harvesting,
green roofs, tree pit drainage, attenuation storage tanks, linear
raingardens and proprietary treatment systems which will improve water
quality before surface water leaves the site. The Drainage Strategy sets
out how each of the measures would be maintained and operated
accordingly. The submitted Drainage Strategy also confirms that foul
water would be discharged to a foul manhole on Cinder Street.

5.102 The Council’s Flood Risk Management Team have commented on the

application and have raised no objections, noting that further drainage
details will need to be submitted through relevant discharge of condition
applications.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 56

5.103 Yorkshire Water have been consulted on the proposals and have raised
no objections to the surface or foul water drainage proposals.

5.104 Having had regard to the consultation responses from the relevant
Drainage Bodies, the Council are satisfied that the discharge of planning
conditions attached at outline stage can provide the detail required to
ensure that an appropriate drainage scheme is incorporated into the site
and that there would be no additional impacts in terms of flood risk. The
proposals therefore comply with local and national policy with respect to
drainage and flood risk subject to discharge of conditions. There are
therefore no further impacts beyond those identified within the outline
consent ES.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Air Quality

Relevant Policies

5.105 Paragraph 192 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should
sustain and contribute towards compliance with relevant limit values or
national objectives for pollutants. Policy ENV1 of the Draft Local Plan
states development will only be permitted if the impact on air quality is
acceptable.

Assessment

5.106 The outline consent Environmental Statement confirmed that taking into
account Transport Assessments and Air Quality Monitoring, there would
be no residual effects as a result of the York Central development from
construction activities subject to implementation of construction dust
mitigation measures which would be discharged through Condition 15 of
the outline consent which requires a Construction Environmental
Management Plan to be submitted and approved prior to the
commencement of each phase or sub phase of development. In
addition the outline consent Environmental Statement established that
there would be no predicted residual effects as a result of the
development to human or ecological receptors arising from operational
traffic and that any potential impacts arising from temporary car parks
would be mitigated by suitable design.

5.107 Condition 53 attached to the outline consent requires an Emission
Mitigation Statement (EMS) be submitted to the Local Planning

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 57

Authority. This condition was partially discharged by Homes
England/Network Rail under application AOD/22/00097. The submitted
Emissions Mitigation Statement provides a framework by which all
reserved matters applications will be determined through setting out a
number of measures for lowering emissions and exposure to air
pollution, to deliver the principles of CYC's Low Emission Planning
Guidance across the site and over a number of phases of development.
The Council’s Public Protection Team confirms that the EMS will need to
be adhered to with each reserved matters application requiring a
statement to cover the specific measures which will be implemented.

5.108 The Applicants have provided a Plot Specific Emissions Mitigation
Statement. This states that a number of design measures have been
incorporated to reduce pedestrian exposure to emissions including
provision of a roof terrace with planting, pedestrian footways separated
from road traffic, inclusion of street trees and outdoor café seating
separated from Cinder Street through raised planting beds. With respect
to encouraging low emission vehicles two parking spaces on site would
be provided with rapid electric vehicle charging points as required by
Condition 52 of the outline consent and 23 chargers would be provided
for electric bicycles. Sustainable transport options would also be
encouraged and measures to encourage this are set out. With respect
to building emissions the report states that there would be a 44%
improvement of building emission rate compared to the target emission
rate, the building is designed with low and zero carbon measures
compliant with BREEAM to achieve an outstanding rating, an EPC A
rating is targeted and a combination of air source heat pumps and
photovoltaics would reduce energy demand.

5.109 The Council’s Public Protection Team have confirmed that the design
measures, building emissions, measures to encourage modal shift to
walking/cycling and traffic management outlined are all acceptable and
no off-site mitigation is proposed. The proposals therefore accord with
the requirements of Condition 53. The Public Protection Team have
requested a condition relating to electric vehicle charging, however this
is already required as part of Condition 52 of the outline consent and this
would need to be discharged accordingly. The proposals as presented
therefore do not give rise to any additional impacts beyond those set out
in the outline consent Environmental Statement and accord with relevant
policies.

Noise and Vibration

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 58

Relevant Policies

5.110 Paragraph 191 of the NPPF states that planning decisions should
mitigate and reduce to a minimum potential adverse impacts resulting
from noise from new development and avoid noise giving rise to
significant adverse impacts on health and quality of life. Policy ENV2 of
the Draft Local Plan requires development proposals likely to give rise to
noise impacts to demonstrate how these have been considered in
relation to both construction and the life of the development.

Assessment

5.111 Condition 64 of the outline consent requires that details of all
machinery, plant and equipment to be installed at non-residential
properties which is audible outside those premises shall be submitted for
approval prior to installation. The Council’s Public Protection Officer is
therefore satisfied that there are sufficient controls in place with respect
to noise as this condition would need to be discharged accordingly. A
site specific Construction Environment Management Plan is required as
part of outline consent Condition 15 and this will require discharge prior
to commencement. This is accepted by the Council’s Public Protection
Officer. The proposals align with the outline consent Environmental
Statement and comply with policy with respect to noise and vibration.

Contamination

Relevant Policies

5.112 Paragraph 189 of the NPPF requires planning decisions to ensure that
a site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of ground conditions
and any risks arising from contamination. Similarly Policy ENV3 of the
Draft Local Plan requires planning applications to be accompanied by an
appropriate contamination assessment.

Assessment

5.113 Whilst a contamination assessment is required pre-commencement as
part of Condition 55 of the outline consent, this application is
accompanied by a Ground Investigation Report which concludes that the
site is suitable for the proposed use. The Council’'s Public Protection
Officer accepts this, however notes that conditions within the outline
consent (Conditions 55 to 57) require a full investigation to be
undertaken and therefore no further conditions need to be imposed as it

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 59

Is expected that the outline conditions would be discharged in due
course.

5.114 Following the implementation of mitigation there will be no new or
different construction effects than were reported in the outline consent
ES and as a result the conclusions remain valid. The proposals
therefore accord with policy with respect to contamination.

Light Pollution

Relevant Policies

5.115 Paragraph 191 of the NPPF requires planning decisions to ensure that
new development is appropriate for its location and in doing so to limit
the impact of light pollution from artificial light on local amenity. Similarly
Policy ENV2 of the Draft Local Plan requires consideration of the
Impacts on amenities of occupants with respect to increase in artificial
light or glare.

Assessment

5.116 Condition 22 of the outline consent requires that a lighting strategy be
submitted with any reserved matters application. The proposed lighting
strategy is set out within the submitted Design and Access Statement
which states that the design utilises layers of light to help create a
balanced night time environment, amenity lighting to provide safe and
secure environments, accent lighting to reinforce wayfinding and provide
architectural definition and feature lighting to add character. The lighting
strategy takes into account various factors including legibility and
wayfinding, sustainability and ecology. The report also considers the
approach to lighting with regard to the lighting proposed within The
Square and the public realm and road lighting provided as part of the
York Central infrastructure works.

5.117 The Council’s Public Protection Team have noted the submission
details with respect to lighting and advise that a lighting condition should
be attached to ensure that the final lighting details can be considered
further, particularly with respect to any impacts on amenity. The
proposals accord with the outline consent ES which accepted any
Impacts subject to mitigation. The proposals are therefore in accordance
with the outline consent ES and accord with national and local policies.

Wind Comfort

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 60

5.118 Condition 21 of the outline consent requires reserved matters
applications to include an assessment of wind conditions. The
application is accompanied by a Wind Assessment which considers the
impacts from wind with only the proposed building in place and then
within the context of York Central being complete. The outcomes of the
assessment have informed the external landscaping design and outdoor
seating areas. It is anticipated that the trees and planting proposed as
part of the external landscape design will help improve pedestrian
comfort conditions by decelerating the wind under the canopy. The
extrusions on the facades of the building, compared to a flush fagcade will
also assist in decreasing wind speeds. The report confirms that the
proposals meet the required comfort criteria for pedestrians and confirms
the findings of the wind assessment are in line with the outline consent
Environmental Statement.

Overshadowing

5.119 Condition 20 of the outline consent requires a daylight and sunlight
assessment for existing and proposed residential dwellings. The
submitted Daylight and Sunlight Assessment considers the impact on
existing residential properties through overshadowing. It confirms that
the closest residential properties on Bishopfield Drive are located 163m
to the north-west and therefore they should be unaffected by the
proposed building through overshadowing due to the separation
distance. This is accepted and the proposals should therefore not give
rise to detrimental impacts with respect to overshadowing existing
residential properties.

5.120 With respect to light levels within the proposed Government Hub itself,
the assessment shows that adjacent plots will impact on daylight
performance once developed and this has been taken into account
within the internal layout of the building. Similarly the building of Plot
Fla has potential to overshadow plot D, Plot F1b and Plot F2 however it
is accepted that this is inevitable given the approved design parameters
of the site.

5.121 With respect to all environmental impacts identified above the
proposals are acceptable and there are no further impacts beyond those
identified within the outline consent ES.

SOCIO ECONOMIC FACTORS

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 61

Relevant Policies

5.122 The NPPF Paragraph 85 states that planning decisions should help
create the conditions in which businesses can invest, expand and adapt.
Significant weight should be placed on the need to support economic
growth and productivity, taking into account both local business needs
and wider opportunities for development.

Assessment

5.123 The proposed Government Hub supports the Government’s drive to
increase job opportunities for local people in York. Together with the
consolidation of existing Government departments in York and new roles
coming into the area, the proposed Hub is providing accommodation
capable of hosting multiple Government departments. The indicative
space requirements comprise 2,600 full time employees and the Hub is
expected to operate with a maximum occupancy between 1,100 and
1,350 people at any given time.

5.124 The Applicants consider the proposed Government Hub would be an
anchor for wider development. Public investment in the infrastructure
and the Government Property Agency’s interest in building a
Government Hub mean that parts of the York Central Masterplan, such
as The Square, would be delivered earlier than anticipated. The
development of the infrastructure works and the Commercial Quarter will
enable the subsequent development of residential properties and finance
the provision of new connections between York Central and the
neighbours that surround it. Enhanced connectivity is linked to
economic uplift. The Council’s Economic Development Team support
the proposals recognising that the development is a key enabler in
growing the city’s economy and contributing to the delivery of the York
Economic Strategy. Officers support the economic benefits the scheme
will bring to the City.

5.125 Condition 54 of the outline consent requires that prior to
commencement a detailed employment, skills and training method
statement be submitted and approved in order to maximise local
employment and training opportunities. This should outline opportunities
for unemployed York residents in the construction phases, target on site
work experience for apprenticeship opportunities for York residents,
detail how the Developer and Contractors will co-ordinate with the
Council, Job Centre Plus and other Partners to develop a partnership
approach to pre-recruitment and work placement, detail how the

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 62

Developer will work with end users to offer employment and training
opportunities and set out initiatives to build community linkages in priority
areas such as curriculum development activities with local schools.
Through this it ensures that the proposals maximise opportunities for
local employment which in turn benefit the local economy.

5.126 Overall with respect to the impacts on the economy Officers support the
scheme in terms of the contributions it will make to the local economy
both during the construction period and in the long term once the
building is occupied.

PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY

5.127 Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 contains the Public Sector
Equality Duty (PSED) which requires public authorities, when exercising
their functions, to have due regard to the need to:

a) Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Act;

b) Advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;

c) Foster good relations between persons who share relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it.

5.128 Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to
the need to:

a) Remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic that are connected to the characteristic;
b) Take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of persons who
do not share it;

c) Encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic to
participate in public life or in any other activity in which participation by
such persons is disproportionately low.

5.129 The PSED does not specify a particular substantive outcome but
ensures that the decision made has been taken with “due regard” to its
equality implications.

5.130 The Applicants have given regard to equalities within the design and

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



6.0

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

6.5

6.6

Page 63

have submitted an Accessibility Note setting out their approach. The
Applicants have liaised with the Council’s Highways and Access Officers
who have assessed the scheme and advised of the potential impacts on
those with protected characteristics. The Council have therefore given
due regard to the equality implications of the proposals in making this
recommendation.

CONCLUSION

The principle of development of the site for an office building with
ancillary retail as part of the York Central development was approved at
outline stage and the reserved matters application aligns with the
parameter plans and Design Guide approved through Conditions 6 and 7
of the outline consent.

In terms of all design aspects, the proposed building accords with the
design parameters set out at outline approval stage and offers a good
design quality benchmark which should positively contribute to the
townscape of York Central and the wider city. Material samples will
come forward through the discharge of Condition 16 of the outline
consent.

The proposals would have a less than substantial impact on the setting
of heritage assets, however the harm is significantly outweighed by the
public benefits arising from its contribution to the economy together with
the social and environmental benefits the proposals will bring not only to
the City of York but also as a cornerstone of the York Central
development.

In terms of highway impacts the layout and access is acceptable in
highway terms. It is acknowledged that the development being zero
parking, except for blue badge spaces with greater reliance on
sustainable transport modes is a shift from what was anticipated at
outline approval stage. However, it is accepted in principle on the basis
that discharge of conditions on the outline consent, particularly with
respect to a Full Travel Plan being submitted can further address any
concerns regarding parking and travel behaviours.

Impacts on habitats and ecology have been appropriately assessed and
any outstanding matters addressed by condition on the outline consent.

There are no additional impacts identified with respect to drainage and
flooding and it is noted that conditions attached on the outline consent

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



6.7

6.8

Page 64

would need to be discharged.

The proposals are in accordance with the outline consent Environmental
Statement which set out the anticipated impacts with respect to air
quality, noise and contamination subject to mitigation and a series of
conditions to be discharged.

The proposals have been assessed in liaison with the Council’s
Highways Officers and Access Officer, taking into account the Council’s
duties under the Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED

7.0 RECOMMENDATION:

That delegated authority to be given to the Head of Development
Services to:

- To determine the final detail of the planning conditions below then
APPROVE the application subject to planning conditions.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance
with the following plans:-

Location Plan with Existing Context YRK-ATK-ZZ-XX-PL-A-021201 PO1
Red Line Boundary Plan YC-RMAO4 001

Block Plan and General Arrangement Roof Level YRK2-ATK-ZZ-R1-PL-
A-011205 P01

General Arrangement Ground and First Floor Level YRK2-ATK-ZZ-00-
PL-A-011201 P03

General Arrangement Second and Third Floor Level YRK2-ATK-ZZ-02-
PL-A-011202 PO1

General Arrangement Fourth and Fifth Floor Level YRK2-ATK-ZZ-04-PL-
A-011203 P01

General Arrangement Sixth and Basement Floor Level YRK2-ATK-ZZ-
06-PL-A-011204 PO1

Proposed North and South Elevations YRK2-ATK-MB-XX-PL-A-012201
P03

Proposed East and West Elevations YRK-ATK-ZZ-XX-PL-A-012202 P01
Site Elevations YRK2-ATK-ZZ-XX-PL-A-023201 P03

Proposed Entrance Study YRK2-ATK-ZZ-00-PL-A-012203 PO1
Proposed Colonnade Bay Study YRK2-ATK-ZZ-00-PL-A-012204 P01
Proposed FOH Bay Study (North) YRK2-ATK-ZZ-00-PL-A-012205 P01
Proposed FOH Bay Study (South) YRK2-ATK-ZZ-00-PL-A-012206 P01
Proposed BOH Bay Study YRK2-ATK-ZZ-00-PL-A-012207 P01

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 65

Proposed Typical Bay Study YRK2-ATK-ZZ-XX-PL-A-012208 P01
Proposed Terrace Bay Study YRK2-ATK-ZZ-05-PL-A-012209 P01
Proposed Facade Top YRK2-ATK-ZZ-05-PL-A-012210 PO1

Proposed Fagade Details YRK2-ATK-ZZ-ZZ-PL-AR-012211 P01
General Arrangement Sections YRK2-ATK-ZZ-XX-PL-A-013201 PO1
Landscape Layout General Arrangement BHA 23 1010 L 001 Rev L
Hardworks Layout BHA 23 1010 L 002 Rev L

Indicative Levels BHA 23 1010 L 004 Rev G

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt.

2. Notwithstanding the soft landscaping shown on Landscape Layout
Planting Plan BHA 23 1010 L 003 Rev H, the final plant species shall
be determined through the discharge of Condition 24 of outline consent
18/01884/OUTM.

Reason: To ensure that the final soft landscape scheme provides an
appropriate level of plant species, including native species to support
priority wildlife species and biodiversity.

3. Prior to the commencement of construction above ground level details of
the layout, design and type of cycle storage for both internal cycle
parking areas and external cycle parking areas shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building shall
not be brought into use until the cycle parking areas have been provided
within the site in accordance with such approved details, and these
areas shall not be used for any purpose other than the parking of cycles
throughout the lifetime of the development.

Reason: To promote use of cycles by both staff and visitors in the
interests of sustainable travel.

4. Details of the height, type, position, angle and spread of any external
lighting shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to the development hereby permitted being
brought into use. The external lighting shall be erected and maintained
in accordance with the approved details to minimise light spillage and
glare outside the designated area.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the

environmental qualities of the area and in the interests of designing out
crime and ecology so as to ensure that lighting will not be mounted

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 66

where it would directly impact on bat boxes, bird boxes or surrounding
tree cover.

5. A programme of post-determination archaeological evaluation is required
on this site. The archaeological scheme comprises 3-4 stages of work.
Each stage shall be completed and agreed by the Local Planning
Authority (LPA) before it can be approved.

A) The site investigation and post-investigation assessment shall be
completed in accordance with the programme set out in the F1
RMA ARMP v1 (in discussion with the City Archaeologist) and the
provision made for analysis, publication and dissemination of
results and archive deposition will be secured. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been
fulfilled in accordance with the programme set out in the ARMP.

B) A copy of a written report on the evaluation and an assessment of
the impact of the proposed development on any of the
archaeological remains identified in the evaluation shall be
deposited with City of York Historic Environment Record to allow
public dissemination of results within 6 weeks of completion or
such other period as may be agreed in writing with the Local
Planning Authority.

C) Where archaeological features and deposits are identified
proposals for the preservation in-situ, or for the investigation,
recording and recovery of archaeological remains and the
publishing of findings shall be submitted as an update to the
ARMP. It should be understood that there shall be presumption in
favour of preservation in-situ wherever feasible.

D) No development in the southern part of the site shall take place
until:

- details in C have been approved and implemented on site

- provision has been made for analysis, dissemination of results
and archive deposition has been secured

- a copy of a report on the archaeological works detailed in Part C
should be deposited with City of York Historic Environment Record
within 3 months of completion or such other period as may be
agreed in writing with the Local Planning Authority.

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 67

This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 16 of NPPF.

Reason: The site lies within an Area of Archaeological Importance. An
investigation is required to identify the presence and significance of
archaeological features and deposits and ensure that archaeological
features and deposits are either recorded or, if of national importance,
preserved in-situ.

6. Prior to occupation of the office building the 16 blue badge spaces shall
be laid out in accordance with the details as shown on the Landscape
Layout General Arrangement Plan referenced BHA 23 1010 L 001
Rev L and made available for use by occupiers of the office
building. The precise number of blue badge spaces being used shall be
recorded daily for a continuous 12 month period commencing from the
date the building is fully occupied. The Local Planning Authority will be
notified of the occupation date in writing within one month from full
occupation. At the end of the 12 month recording period the results
shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. If it can be
demonstrated that a reduced level of blue badge parking would be
sufficient to cater for all occupiers of the building, the Council will confirm
in writing the number of blue badge spaces that can be removed. The
development shall thereafter retain the approved number of blue badge
parking spaces as so confirmed by the Council for the lifetime of the
development.

Reason: To ensure that the level of blue badge parking is appropriate for
the end use.

7. The development shall be undertaken in accordance with the
recommendations and mitigation set out in Preliminary Ecological
Appraisal dated November 2023 and the measures set out within the
Biodiversity Enhancement Management Plan dated October 2023 by
Pell Frischmann, unless otherwise first approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. In the event that tree sizes do not support bat and
bird boxes (which should be installed at approximately 4m high) the
applicant should submit to the Council for approval in writing details of
alternative locations just outside the red site boundary, or offer
alternative products for example invertebrate boxes, rather than bat and
bird boxes. The development shall thereafter be carried out in
accordance with the approved details.

Reason: In the interests of securing ecological enhancements at the site

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 68

in line with the recommendations set out in submitted Preliminary
Ecological Appraisal.

7.0 INFORMATIVES:

STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE
APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented
the requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework
(paragraph 38) in seeking solutions to problems identified during the
processing of the application. The Local Planning Authority took the following
steps in order to achieve a positive outcome:

Worked with the Applicant during the course of the application to seek clarity
and amendments where necessary in order to ensure that the overall layout
and design was satisfactory and accords with the design parameters
established at outline stage.

Contact details:
Case Officer: Louise Milnes
Tel No: 01904 555199

Application 23/02255/REMM ltem 4a



Page 69

York Central, Leeman Road, York
23/02255/REMM

Car Park \ BN

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

. ev N
=

York (Station)

.‘\,

\‘..» .\; . ‘\ A
A\ GRS

\)
Scale : 1:2702
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 12 July 2024

, ) SLA Number [Not Set
Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL

Planning Committee A

To be held on 22nd July 2024

T/ obed



23/02255/REMM — York Central, Leeman
Road, York

Reserved matters application for layout, scale, appearance, landscaping g
and access for erection of a six storey (plus basement) office building X
(Use Class E (g) (1)) with ancillary uses and self-contained retall
floorspace (Use Class E (b)) at ground floor, associated car and cycle
parking, servicing and access, public realm and other associated
Infrastructure pursuant to outline planning permission 18/01884/OUTM

CCCCCCC



DO NOT SCALE

noTE:
=50 o T e content of tis drawing refers to a planning appicaton level
Qb Uiy i of detail It i infended for indicative purposes and orly for
intfor .
BN/ Gy TR, r ot s bt 5
Dq:] map data. Grance Survey, (c) Grown Gopyright 2023. All
rights reserved. Licence number 100022432,
3 This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the Design and
s Statement a0 iher Socumariation provided o part of
% e
4. No dimensions are to be measured from this drawing.
RMA#4 Site Boundary (9,230 sqm )
? 0 Q/—j Plot F1a Boundary (3,160 5q.m.)
s | f \ S é b N 1 i

CLASSIFICATION - CONTAINS BASELINE INFORMATION

Site Location ]
Plan and Wider 1
Context

Milmetes
1

10

0
luatul

o

[For | Tz [Pamingimss 7 Joa Towy|
[ o o [ —
— =

FOR INFORMATION S2

ﬁ ) .
Westmnsir
SNC-LAVALIN Erir
Ter 02071212000
ATKINS www.atkinsglobal.com

© SNCLavalin (2018)

& o

0 @, Govemment Property Agency
Government

f Property

O Agency

=
@ York Central Proposed Government Hub
SHELL AND CORE
5
D CITY OF —
0@ Location Plan with Existing Context -
s

Planning Issue

I OI ‘K 228 £ i T S "
N Scale 11250 "R |Tomn |Tosorn oo | o

A -

@ 0 2 625 125m YRK2-ATK-ZZ-XX-PL-A-021201 Po1

COUNCIL

Atkins Project Number. 5202230




R

|

Uﬂ—ég

National Rai Musaum
Syafional Reibwoy

e ‘_-h“_
==
1 .
——

ur—"_—'_r—_-—h:__ﬂ;_‘ =
: —— T——— Hudson Boulevard —

= S Reerved Motters Application RMA 04
Red line boundary phan

4
e — YCRMAC 001



i

27 Mangaretiwhitehead
= ennis;Coaching
Y
lleeman:Roa )
N X T g AutoSenvices
L SThe VIRCleaning sy X
g Company. oo

Fobe |

T S

Mlsticarfeasing

0
»
-
-
|

\

'S8 ALY
Si9soy um.\,@'E

v
2

‘&

" Malm
3
o T
\REAT

W)

-

o

gvers

CITY OF

YORK

Google Earth Aerial Image
COUNCIL

]

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024



North of Site towards
NRM Station Hall

\kg{q{
| Ii ‘
H i

11 r ‘ A

e

L[] e

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024




View Northeast
over The Square

4—"21-‘% CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL




View Northeast towards
Leeman Road Tunnel
and Marble Arch

4—‘!‘-‘% CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024




View East toward
York Station

o

4—‘%% CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024




View Southeast towards
York Station

COUNCIL City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024




View South looking
towards former
Cinder Lane

o

ZQ‘ CITY OF

YORK

conne City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024




View West

IR T

1-'::;.—----"-"-:-«-««.

D[
UINIR

—

A

YORK

COUNC
IL
City of Yo
rk Counci
uncil Planning Committee M
e Meeting - 2
-22nd Jul
y 2024




General
Arrangement
Roof Plan

i

\
g CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

DO NOT SCALE

Plot F2

(future development)

Plot F2

(future development)

-
”

HUDSON BOULEVARD

e

e ———

HUDSON LANE
il

==

’ 1 PV Panel Zone (Area TBC)

CINDER SNICKET

PLOT F1b

future development)

HUDSON LANE

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024

I

SQUARE

The content of this drawing refers to a planning application level
of detail It is intended for indicative purpeses and only for
information.

b is based on the latest OS
map data. Ordance Survey. (c) Grown Copyright 2023. All
Fights reserved. Licence numbar 100022432
This drawing is to be read in conjunction with the Design and

2w _é

Access Statement and other documentation provided 35 part of
this planning application.
No dimensions are to be measured from this drawing

P01 | 130723 LT_|pa |owmv]

[— p— o owa oo
— —
FOR PLANNING S2
5)) A e
Westmnater
SNCLAVALIN SWIE sBY
et 2071212000
ATKINS e kil com
Merbors w5 el B © SNC-Lavalin (2018)

@ Govemment Property Agency
Govemnment

Agency
B
York Central Proposed Government Hub
SHELL AND CORE
=

Block Plan & General Arrangement Roof
Level - Planning Issue (Redacted)

S Ortes =) P =]
1:200 a pA DV NA

orgraar o= =3 3 3
Al 040723 | 040723 | 040723 | 040723

YRKZ—ATK—N;&31 -PL-A-011215 PO1

CLASSIFICATION - CONTAINS BASELINE INFORMATION

Atkins Project Number: 5202230




Site Layout
Landscape General
Arrangement

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

(CONTRASTING BANDS OF
BLACK GRANITE SETTS TO,
DEFINE EXTENT OF
PEDESTRIAN AREAS
Plot F2
TTTTTTT T T T T ITITTITT]
[T [T TITITITIIT I T]
SERVICE YARD INTERIM
CONCRETE ASPHALT WITH PCC
PIN KERB EDGE TO WESTERN
BOUNDARY,WITHIN YARD
FLUSH CONSERVATION KERB
EDGE TO ASPHALT WITH GREY < o
GRANITE AGGREGATE PAVING
(VEHICULAR) SURROUND 5 o
PARKING BAY MARKINGS\§ G‘d 9'
ALL TO HIGHWAY
ENGINEERS LAYOUT AND o
SPECIFICATION / DETAIL.

CONTINUATION OF CIVIC
PALETTE TO GPA BUILDING
"APRON' i.e.YORKSTONE PAVING

RECTILINEAR PLANTING BEDS (SuDS.
OPPORTUNITY) WITH SMALLER SCALE
MULTI-STEMSPECIMEN TREES IN
PLANTING BEDS. BENCH SEATING TO
ENDS OF BEDS AS INFORMAL SOCIAL
SPACE. INTERVENING SECTIONS OF
PAVING COINCIDENT WITH EXTERNAL

Plot F2

TP A A

DOORS/BIKE STORE ACCESS.

PLOT Fla

CONTINUATION OF CIVIC PALETTE TO
GPA BUILDING "APRON' (INCLUDING

ENTRANCE

'YORKSTONE PAVING.

HVM ELEMENTS COMPRISE BENCH
SEATING (CONCRETE BASE/TIMBER
TOP) AND CUBE BOLLARDS

PEDESTRIAN 'ALLEY' BETWEEN F1A AND
F1B RELECTS TYPICAL YORKSHIRE SIDE
STREET, YORKSTONE SETTS TO CENTRE
FLANKED BY YORKSTONE PAVING SLABS
TO EACH SIDE. AREA OF SETTS (AND
EXTENT OF ALLEY) DEFINED BY BAND
OF BLACK GRANITE SETTS

STREET TREES CONTINUE

INTO INCIDENTAL SPACE,

WITH BENCH SEATING

BENEATH, TO CREATE

SMALL PIAZZA/SOCIAL
PACE

SR & SRR AL G & &

PRIMARY PALETTE MATERIALS IN

HUDSON LANE REFLECT LOCAL
STYLE WITH CENTRAL SECTION OF
SILVER GREY GRANITE AGGREGATE
PAVING (VEHICULAR) FLANKED BY
LIGHT GREY GRANITE AGGREGATE
PAVING (PEDESTRIAN) WITH
CONSERVATION KERB TO DEFINE
VEHICULAR ROUTE.

Plot F1b

‘ | ‘ %I\‘\‘\‘I‘I‘I‘I‘\‘\‘\I\I\ \‘

LTITI]

REJECTION LOOP DEFINED BY DARK GREY CONSERVATION KERB
EDGE (100MM UP-STAND WITH DROP KERBS AS REQUIRED) WITH
VEHICULAR SPECIFICATION SILVER GREY AGGREGATE PAVING.

1:250

FOR DETAILS OF LANDSCAPE

TREATMENTS AT INTERFACE WITH
MUSEUM SQUARE SEE BHA DWG. NO.

BHA_22_1019_NR_S_003

MUSEUM SQUARE

THES DRAWING IS CORVRIGHT (© OF BARTON HOWE
ASSOCIATES LTD.
LL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED) ON SITE PRICR TO

ANY WORKS OR ORDERING OF MATERIALS.

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.
Figured dimension: only are ta be used.

'BARTON HOWE ASSOCIATES LTD CAN NOT BE HELD

MEASUREMENTS SHOULD BE
SUITABLY QUALIFIED SURVEYO)
'BARTON HOWE ASSOCIATES LTD CAN NOT BE HELD
RESPONSI

JBLE FOR THE ACCURALY OF COMPUTER
SOFTWARE USED TQ GETERMINE MEASUREMENTS.

BESPOKE FREE STANDING PLANTER WITH REMOVABLE LINERS

30m

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024

AND INTEGRAL WATER RESERVOIR.
3NO PLANTERS 1460 X 900MM

EXTERNAL FINISH PRE CAST CONCRETE PANEL.
D/ORANGE COLOUR TO MATCH BUILDIN:

RALL HEIGHT 900MM.

GROWING MEDIUM 70% APPROVED TOPSOIL WITH 30% PEAT
NUGGET MULCH.

E SOIL COMPOST. APPROVED

LEGEND
SOFT LANDSCAPE

LA BRANTE ST

PRV VENCULAR,

LT GREY GRANTE AGGREGATE PG
sy

ey

SLYER GREY GARMTE FLAT TOSOUKRE EDSE KERS FLAED,
PR 145 258 400

2EEMAARS XLSHRAWY INCLUDINS DROF KEFEBS AS RECURED. DA
=

(CONSERUATION X REFE TIMILPSTAND

RATURAL GOLGLR

CORTEN BESPOKE TREE GRALE

[ r—

78 abed

[
=
=
—
rd
[o]
[-]
[-]
[-]
Ly

THIS DRAWING SHOULD BE READ IN COMJUNCTION WITH
BHSA.DWE Ho. A 23 1010 A LBG2 ned 1503
THIS DRAWING I ESUED FOR PLANNING PURPOSES OHLY

warr |
T S| |- |
CORTEN P RSN BELLARD 1 T
war|
s S| ||
3 S | | e |

Fr

£ ]

FIED BOLLARD: CORTEN FO MATCH TREE GHLLES = 5

srerFELD TYPE BiALES STERL CYCLE Hoces

(LD DUCLOCK 51 IWELDED MESHPANELS, STEEL POSTS. ALL 1M

NETWORK RAILHOMES ENGLAND
YORK CENTRAL
PLOTF1A

LANDSCAPE LAYOUT
GENERAL

EMLAR APROLED
(GATE: LD LOGINAS TER S1 SHOLE LEAF OATE 100,
A oOTE ) SAMLA AP L T

ENGHET. DETALS T B AGREED AT DETALED DESICH STAGE

14

MK

23_10_NR
M| t2s0@A1 | PLANNING
BHA_23_1010_L_001

th ‘ bartonhawe associate




g CLASSIFICATION - CONTAINS BASELINE INFORMATION DO NOT SCALE

The content of this drawing refers to a planning application level

of detail. It is intended for indicative purposes and only for

information

2 The background information shown is based on the latest OS
map data. Ordance Survey, (c) Grown Copyright 2023. All

4 rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

Proposed ] v EER I
Ground Floor :
and First Floor ]

Milimetres
I

(future development)

Retail Access

0

[> HUB Access
P
4

Vehicular Access

0

WORKSPACE

Foyer
FrL7s00m

Retail

Office Space

BOH

| 0
' =

2| Level 01

011211 | SCALE 1:200

HUDSON BOULEVARD

Plot F2 T " "

(future development)

SQUARE

WORKSPAGE

FLsmn

P03 | 1010874 |Revised Planring Issus 7 owv| Na

P02 | 2010324 |Revised Planning Issue 0 _[owv] Na
N P01 | 2510823 [Stage 03 Issue [0 s [omv
- ome [re— [ ——

Orowing Sutatity ‘m

FOR PLANNING

0)) N Breeanten Face
SNC-LAVALIN SwiEmy

ATKINS Tel: 02071212000

wanwatkinsglobal.com
P o 1Sl G © SNC-Lavalin (2019)

T TmT—"TT!

3 Government Property Agency
!,\55‘ Ercé\aemment
oF arty

of Agé?w

WORKSPACE

P
York Central Proposed Government Hub
SHELL AND CORE

SERVICE
YARD 4

Drawrg e

CITY OF ]
General Arrangement Ground & First Floor

) —lAd LA 7 / Level - Planning Issue (Redacted)
o R K %%\é} 5“:5 == - mu:)‘ RTW ’”'“::A
I & N Scale 1:200 ——

1| Level 00 CINDER LANE @ A | oo | mea | e | ama
COUNCIL ortann | scaie 1. 200

YRK2-ATK-MB-XX-PL-A-011211 P03

0 4 10 20m

Aiking Project Number: 5202230




Proposed
Second and
Third Floor Plan

CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

CLASSIFICATION - CONTAINS BASELINE INFORMATION

DO NOT SCALE

Plot F2

(future development)

2| Level 03

011212 | SCALE 1:200

Plot F2

(future development)

1| Level 02

011212 | SCALE 1:200

WORKSPACE
FRLZEm

WORKSPACE
FrLzLEsIm

A

Scale 1: 200

20m

NOTE:

1 The content of this drawing refers 1o a planning application level
of detail. It i intended for indicative purposes and only for
information.

2 The background information shown is based on the latest OS

map data. Ordance Survey. () Crown Copyright 2023. All
rights reserved. Licence number 100022432

3 ‘This drawing is to be read in coniunction with the Desian and
Access Statement and ofher documentation provided as part of
this plarning application

4 No dimensions are to be measured from this drawing.

P01 | 130723 |Planning Issus LT [pa |owy|

[ Descrpton o cws

FOR PLANNING Sz

Nova North,
*, 11 Bressenden Place
Westminster

SNC-LAVALIN SWIE 5BY
Tel: 02071212000

ATKINS v atkinsgiobal.com

Secar © SNC-Lavalin (2019)

Horboe s e

@ Govemment Property Agency
Governiment

Agency

=
York Central Proposed Government Hub
SHELL AND CORE

e

General Arrangement Second & Third Floor

Level - Planning Issue (Redacted)
= =] =] = =
1:200 a DA oMy NA
s S o e e
Al 04.07.23 04.07.23 04.07.23 04.07.23
g e e

YRK2-ATK-MB-XX-PL-A-011212 P01

Atkins Project Number. 5202230



CLASSIFICATION - CONTAINS BASELINE INFORMATION DO NOT SCALE

NOTE:
1 The content.of this drawing refers to a planning applicaion level
of detail. 1t is intended for indicative purpases and only for
information.

- 2 The background information shown is based on the latest OS

Proposed 1 Plot F2 i S
Fourth and Fifth )
Floor Plan

Ascess Statement and other documentation provided as part of
this planning application.
a No dimensions are to be measured from this drawing

Milimeres
I

N e

]

[T
o

0

WORKSPACE

FRL34S0m

Bl .

o .

.

.

2| Level 05

011213 | SCALE 1:200

Plot F2

(future development)

[FoT | 135723 [Panning e T on [ow
[ f— o o
— -
WORKSPAGE FOR PLANNING [yi
FAL30SSOm Nova North,
: ) e
Westmnster
. SNC+LAVALIN b
Tel: 02071212000
ATKINS wan.atkinsgicbalcom

Horlor s b B30 e

e © SNC-Lavalin (2018)

@ Govemment Property Agency

P
York Central Proposed Government Hub
SHELL AND CORE

orawng T

CITY OF

General Arangement Fourth Floor & Fifth
/ Floor Level - Planning Issue (Redacted)
= == =] =
1:200 J DA DMV NA
Scale 1:200 E=r= e
Al

ilind N N P OO O
COUNCIL 011213 | SCALE 1-200

0 4 1o aom YRK2-ATK-MB-XX-PL-A-011213 | PO1

Atkins Project Number. 5202230




NOTE:
1 The content.of this drawing refers to a planning applicaion
of detail

be measurad from this drawing

p data. nce Survey, (c)
Fights reserved. Licance number 100022432
This draw

2 The background information shown is based on the latest OS
map data. Ordance S

E3 is drawing is fo be read in conjunction wit
Ascess Statement and other documentation provided as part of
this planning appli

mment
Property

Agency

zi % Egyl O
S E :
AR 1113

Roof Brant Enclosure

N
@ 0 4

Basement Level

Proposed Sixth
Plan

Floor and

%

CITY OF

COUNCIL

YORK

,



Proposed
North and
South

Elevations

!
\ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

CLASSIFICATION - CONTAINS BASELINE INFORMATION

DO NOT SCALE

Fia
perParamete Fan YG#P 610

w@m

Ir_vﬁ,

|8 BN BN AR WA AR AN AR NAE R R A0 RN R
i m IIIIlIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII
A3 EES  J3EN, BN

1| North Elevation - Planning
012201 | SCALE 1:200

Ft
per Parameter P YCPP 010

RILRID BRIV LD NIRRT o o i m
. NN W

2 | South Elevation - Plannin:

¢

of detail. It i intended for indicative purposes and only for
information.

map data. Ordance Survey, (c) Crown Copyright 2023. All

rights reserved. Licence number 100022432.

This drawing s to b read i conjuncion wit the Design and
partof

rl.mnp;ﬂ:mnn.
4. Nodimensions are to be measured from this drawing.

3|
8|

10/06/24_|Revised Planning Issue J_[owv]
2010324 _|Revised Planning Issue o [oMv| NA
1307723 _|Planning Issue [7F_[pA |omv]

ome. Descroton

3

§!|§

—
FOR PLANNING | [

) -

Westminster

SNC+LAVALIN ey
ATKINS it
[

© SNC-Lavain (2019)

& Government Property Agency

Govemimerit
Property
Agency

=
York Central Proposed Government Hub
SHELL AND CORE

Oravrg e,

Proposed North and South Elevations
Planning Issue

e oronaxa == = owroea
1:200 J DA oMV NA

3 E3 3 o
Al 210324 | 210324 | 210324 | 210324

elles City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024

R

YRK2-ATK-M1— -PL-A-012201 P03

Atking Project Number; 5202230




CLASSIFICATION - CONTAINS BASELINE INFORMATION DO NOT SCALE

7 N\ of detail It is intended for indicative purposes and only for
information.

mmmsm (c) Crown Copyright 2023 All
= number 100022432.
kS Tmtmsnumdnmmmmbesq n and

part of

Proposed East i N ——

and West ] R ange
Elevations I ,”,

(L

LEHEE T T
ol EEER RS E
L0001 NN NN

National Rail Museum

x| LIRS RAIE MR BTN

Plot F1.B

1| East Elevation - Planning

012202 | SCALE 1:200

A PG g Resrcion e P Pan o

20m
23m
[Pt | 13707723 |Planning issue [ [oA [omy]
[—— coreon o o rews
Sl 8B S B =i 8 Do sumy =
IIIIIIIIIIIIIII'I — &
Nova North,
e T e Bt ’)) e Plaoa
! | L LR R ! ATKINS fiagrede it
Parn ol Do SHC-Lisvilin € g © SNC-Lavalin (2019)
o
& Govemment Property Agency

Govemimerit

 BHN SNE AN SAE U R o
1 1 Agency

=
York Central Proposed Government Hub
SHELL AND CORE

PlotF1.B
(future development)

National Rail Museum
(Former Good Station)

g TR

Proposed East and West Elevations

K
\ CITY OF
Planning Issue

= =i [ [
1:200 TF DA oMV NA
2| West Elevatlon Planning = = = = o=
012202 | SCALE 1: Scale 1: 200 Al 230823 230823 23.06.23 23.0823

COUNCIL “Fo

Atking Project Number: 5202230

City of York Council Planning Committee Meeting - 22nd July 2024 B i VRK2ATK 223 PL A 012202 | =




Conural Koy:

— )
Lurscape’ Prsting

[N voticte Restrakrt System
Carriagawsy

[ Footway
Mibsnnkum Green Facbrey

[ segropaine =y krm

[ on-cmageway cyde lane
Shared foctuey! opcioumy
‘Burfacs coursa aclour porrant

S veice Crossomr

(777777 motainiog waa

=== Uinsound Are for Low Londer Acceen

% Indiaiiva el nignal pola loction
(77777 Pesesttan detsram paing

Nutmork Rall Linssidn Access mrea

Approved General
Arrangement for
Infrastructure
Works
(20/00710/REMM)

Tackin Paing Kay:
‘Signalesd Blster Tactie pring
Bliaker Tactio paving
Tramiing Tacthe (demameion on cychs lna}
Lackdar Tactlls {damamatian an foatway)

Lighting iCay:
~a=  5m culumn whh deuble laniem
== & column with eingle latem
me= &M oolumn with deaible atam
s &moniumn uith singls lrism
= 4mcalumn wih singls head
£m muthead ool

10m murs-hoad colimn

o]
O 12m mut-hwed ockumn

so

Proposed sigralissd
crowng.

T6 abed

glale|s|a(a]s ||
HURENRnaD

' ARUP
it et M
[T i —————
e T —
e m————
G
ity i Ytk Gouungil

8 Fanding Key:

’ Propoued hoardng i (1.8} T

York Central

__ Network Rall Operalional Baundary
Fencing (1.3m}

————— Postad Rall Fenelng {1.1m)
——— Postand {1.2m) e
Phase 1 RMA.

T tdm General Arrangament
—h " tAm) Sheet 10 6f 12

!
\ CITY OF a0 P

.
-
3 »
4 .
- -
p 5. R
N > - i s
v g g 5 3 . g .
N g =S )
, & o
_— — — — — —  — — — — -+ Rall foncs. M - Hglways
- — ANAAA BB 4. Buttsnia for Staga Aparcval
e 3 o o )
T | |  Diating Fost and Wea Fanaa - * - -
| ES EE B B S B B retained P06 [ = = -
H ]

—_— ——r [T

1
COUNCIL City of York Council %lng :m - ch -ARP-RMY. 2X - DR - cH - o110

e Sto Forca o i el Bl il Bl B

| ArughCH - A - Highwarys\DR - Dramring YOL-ARP-RM1-J0¢DR-CH-0110




Approved
Landscape
General
Arrangement for
The Square
(23/01494/REMM

\
N CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

LEGEND
SOFT LANDSCAPE

~PROPOSED LOW/MEDILM CRMAMENTAL
‘ ‘SHRUB )/ PERENNIAL PLANTING.

HARD LANDSCAPE
VORKSTENE SLAB PAVIID, STRETEHER SGNO

LACK GRANIT SETTE R ECLAMEDNEW) RALSAL PATTER
SRS

VRKETENE LARGE LN SETTS, STRETCHER BCRD

VERRSTONE SETTS STRETCHER B0ND LENGTNAYS B¢
BIRECTIOn CF CYEL AR
— ey SR

pe e

~EUSTING SURFACE RETAMED

G v £ e o i o

ZEBRA CROSSMG: ATERNATE SLVER OREY AND BLACK CRANITE
TEXTURED NG BETT8 30010k UNTSCE

[ttt ittt

SLVER HE Y GRANITE SLITER PAYVIND CENTRAST EDUE T0
BRI e s

A N e

~EXSTING GATE FOSTS RETANED
‘SXSTING SECTION OF WALL RETANED

IR, RECTILNEAR SACK GRANTE SETTS

‘SLVER GREY GRANTE FLAT ToP KERE, LAID FLLEH

‘SLVER HE Y GRANTE FLAT 0P KERE, S0 LPSTAND TE CYCLEWAY
SRS

COMEERVATION KERS AR GREY) { SRANITEKERS
SRR

‘SLVER CE Y GRANTE FLAT ToP KERS, 18N LPSTAND 10 ENTIRE
v . i

T 1O BAEARS EVER' 2 0 {SLBLECT 10 ETAILED DESIcH 10 THE

‘AR BDE CHLY OF THE PROPOGED /08 PLANTING BED SECTION OF

ST ER ABIACENT T BBt SEATR 10 SCRPORATE ETCLED
7T WoRDING ToE.

R e . e b o

SLVER GHE Y GRANTE BETTE as0xsuenms.

xTENT oF bAce KERBS
R s e e ens

EESPCHE CABT CONCRETE RETANNG WALL

ENSUREEERER

BLLNENA PROPLE EDISNG (10 MATCH 12 SPECICATIN)
SRR

‘CORTEN STEEL CYELE ETAND.
R s . ) e

S con TeN PLSTERS
R R e

e

CURYED TMIGER SENGH WITH ARMRSSTRRACKREST

R v e i o

ConcRETE cUBE SEAT
i = e e
o TN sTEEL BeweD

R e

R e

‘CORTEN STEEL RASED CIRCLLAR PLNTER i HEGHT B DAMETER

EESPCHE CABT METAL WEK-RIGE'

LOEATISH OF PERMITTED Nl REFUEE ETGRE

A3 BOUNDARY

ECECREE

STATION HALL

PLOT FO1A
BUILDING

: e . ) .
City om Council P, anmng’eommmee Meeting - 22nd Jiily 2024

GREAT HALL

FORMER HYDRAULIC
POWER HOUSE

MINERAL OFFICE
BUILDING

Sy
R

—
o

=
=
Lo

e

£

o
S
e

2

® ® e 6 O

e

®
@
@
@
@
@

THIS DRAWING IS COPYRIGHT © F BARTON HOWE
pe=t
ALL DIMENSIONS TO BE CHECKED ON SITE PRIOR TO
COMMENCEMENT o7 AN

456 To BE NOTFIED OF ANY
(GMISIONS R ERRORS PRIOR TO EOMMENCEMENT OF
ANTWWORKS O ORDERING OF MATERIALS.

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING.
Figured dimensions only s 12 be:

BATON HOWE ASSOCIATES LTD CAN HOT BE HELS
RESPONSELE FOR THE ACCURACY OF WFORMATION

surastx QuauED:

SOFTWARE USED 70 DETERINE MEASUREMENTS

|

KEY

NEW SQUARE WILL FEATURE EXTENSIVE HIGH QUALITY YORKSTONE
PAVING. CHARAGTERISTIC OF CIVIG SPACES. WILL PROVIDE LEVEL.
INCLUSIVE SPACE. OPEN AREAS PROVIDE OPPORTUNITIES FOR SMALLER
SCALE

LEPATH WITH DELINEATED
ROUTE THROUGH AT MUSEUM SQUARE TO HUDSON

STREET LEVEL PL
'SQUARE FROM CINDER STREET. BENGH SEATING ALONG PLANTING AREA
‘WILL OFFER VIEWS OF ACTIVITIES IN THE SQUARE

(CONTROLLED VEHICULAR ACCESS POINT FOR MAINTENANCE AND

EM CYCLE PARKING PROVISION TO EAST ELEVATION
OF MINERAL OFFICE BUILDING.

LARGER SCALE TERRACED SEATING WITH PLANTING TO ADDRESS
DRAMATIC CHANGE IN LEVEL. INCLUSION OF TACTILE PAVING AS
AVED AREA FORMES EASTERN ENTRANGE TO

'OUTDOOR SEATING FOR NATIONAL RAIL MUSEUM CAFE WITH SMALL.
TREES TO CREATE SHADE

CIRCULAR FORMS WITH CONNECTING RODS ACKNOWLEDGE HERITAGE OF

LOCATION CREATED WITH CONTRASTING GRANITE SMALLER
IDE LOCATIONS FOR LIGHTING COLUMNS AND FLAGPOI

CONNECTING RODS WILL T mes

CREATE FUN ELEME

Y <)
“"WEIGHERIDGE™ TO DEMARCATE LOCATION OF FORMER FEATURE. SE1
anmmunummmmenErommsmomsm(Q
HALL). ING WILL AIM TO THROUGH

B T L Lo T

CLEPATH, LANTED ARE,
FROM HUDSON BOULEVARD TO PROVIDE VISUAL AND PHYSICAL LINK.
NEW SQUARE. SIGNAGE WILL BE PROVIDED TO INDICATE A SHARED

‘SPACE TO GYCLISTS, @
S —
SravarLTaLIeTr BT N
st At

S B ol T R e o
‘SECURITY AND PUBLIC SAFETY.

POTENTIAL CUTDOOR SEATING FOR CAFE TO SOUTH EAST CORNER OF
FORTHCOMING GPA BUILDING, SET WITHIN PLANTERS FOR SHADE.

PINKIRED GRANITE TO PEDESTRIAN CROSSING.

RAISED PLANTERS WITH CORTEN SIDES CONTRIBUTE TO SECURITY AND
PUBLIC SAFETY. MULT] STEM SMALLER TREES [N PLANTING. BENCH
'SEATING, SHADED BY TREES, WITH VIEWS ACROSS NEW SQUARE.
LOCATION OF WAY FINDING.

PROVISICN OF ZEBRA UNCONTROLLED CROSSING AT CYCLE WAY WITH
INGLUSION OF TEXTUREDIVESUALLY GONTRASTING MATERIALS,
DIRECTIONAL PAVING TOFROM CROSSING POINT.

AL INGLUDED WITHIN PAVING DESIGN TO REFLEGT LAYOUT INDICATED ON
BHADRAWING 22 1010 NR_L_00+ HARDWORKS GENERAL ARRANGEMENT.

¥ | | TR
w T |

Lk

" NETWORK RAIL / HOMES ENGLAND

THE SQUARE
YORK CENTRAL

"LANDSCAPE GENERAL ARRANGEMENT

Lonaramarwy [T Josrs
22 1018 NR
71| T260@A1  [COMMENT ONLY
BHA_22_1019_NR_S_003 ‘ \"}

- barto-howe assooiates
4. e Design § Assassmant | Management




Park and Ride
Accessibility Plan

\ CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Keny

I Indicative Flot F1a Boundary
] indicative RMA#4 Boundary
‘ Indicative RMA#4 Access from Realigned

= Cinder Strest
— O Busstep
. «-| === Existing Park & Ride Bus Route
’ : e =e= Re-routed Service 50 to Park
'.:E'Em & Ride via mugmm'é‘é’.?&?.?‘}m
e Central Site Access Road
Walking Catchment
[] 400m
] Boom
I 8oom
\ S
__ '-\..
VL ame
o
o4 o
QD
(@)
D
o i ©
oy w
- N oy f
ol £ claba: e et gt L0240
aale —
\kﬂug' mm [
1*_ " Whikehal Roacd L
: O += Hydrock
¢ —— Fore
ne = ] Ot
o McLaren Property
Pt
Proposed Government Hub and Associated
2 Rawcliffe Ad036 Station Avanue 500m 10 mins # Infrastructure at York Central
| Floure Tl
3 Askham Bar 41048 Station Raad &oom 13mins _ .(": g Ride billty
7 Designer Outlet | A1036 Station Road &oom 12 mins 1
9 Monks Cross A1036 Station Raad 8o0rm 12 mins Soair Pigart e i
. N . 14,000 lssue
5@ Poppleton | Realigned Cinder i3l Fite Arenss foad | #8Th mittee MebEAMS o0 July i e
m ELALY W x T T T A 31225 Figure




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4a York Central, Leeman Road, York [23/02255/REMM]
	York Central, Leeman Road, York Site Plan  [23-02255-REMM]
	York Central, Leeman Road, York Presentation  [23-02255-REMM]
	Slide 1: Planning Committee A
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22
	Slide 23



